
 
 

October 25, 2018 -1- 6:00 PM 

A G E N D A  •  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, October 25, 2018 
Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2340 

www.cityofclovis.com 
 
Commission Members: Paul Hinkle, Chair, Amy Hatcher, Chair Pro Tem, Alma Antuna, Brandon 
Bedsted, Mike Cunningham 
 
The Planning Commission welcomes you to this meeting.  
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact Planning Division staff at (559) 324-2340.  Notification 
48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any 
item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City of Clovis Planning 
Division, located in the Planning and Development Services building, between 8:00 a.m. and 
3:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.  In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on 
the City’s website at www.cityofclovis.com. 
 
ABOUT THE MEETING 
 
The Planning Commission consists of five Clovis residents appointed by the City Council to 
make decisions and recommendations on City planning issues.  Decisions made by the Planning 
Commission may be appealed to the City Council.   
 
After the approval of minutes, the Chairperson of the Planning Commission will ask for business 
from the floor.  If you wish to discuss something which is NOT listed on the agenda, you should 
speak up at this time.   
 
Next, the Planning Commission will discuss each item listed on the agenda.  For the items on 
the agenda which are called "public hearings," the Planning Commission will try to follow the 
procedure listed below:   
 
For each matter considered by the Commission, there will first be a staff presentation, followed 
by a presentation from the project applicant.  Testimony from supporters of the project will then 
be taken, followed by testimony from those in opposition.  The applicant will have the right to a 
final rebuttal presentation prior to closing the public hearing.  Once this is complete, the 
Chairperson will close the public hearing and the Commission will discuss the item and cast their 
votes. 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
file:///C:/Users/bryana/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/johnh/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/MY62Q8WM/www.cityofclovis.com


October 25, 2018 -2- 6:00 PM 

 
If you wish to speak on an item, please step to the podium and clearly state your name and 
address for the record.  The Planning Commission wants to know how you feel about the items 
they are voting on, so please state your position clearly.  In accordance with Section 13 of Article 
2 of the Planning Commission Rules and Regulations governing length of public debate, all 
public testimony from those in support and in opposition to the project will be limited to five 
minutes per person.  In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes 
or less.  
 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

FLAG SALUTE 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes from the September 27, 2018, Meeting 
 

Recommendation: Approve 
 

COMMISSION SECRETARY COMMENTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 

COMMUNICATIONS AND REFERRALS 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Planning 
Commission on any matter that is not listed on the Agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Consider Approval, TM6076, A request to approve the second one-year 
extension to an approved tentative map for property located at the northeast 
corner of Dakota and Clovis Avenues.  Clovis Colony Investors, LLC, 
owner/applicant. 

Staff: Bryan Araki, City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

 

2



October 25, 2018 -3- 6:00 PM 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3. Consider Approval, Res. 18-__, CUP2017-10A, A request to approve an 
amendment to the side yard setback requirements of Conditional Use Permit 
CUP2017-10 within Tentative Map TM6186. WCP Developers, LLC, 
owner/applicant. 

Staff: Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

4. Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-04, A request to approve a 
conditional use permit for a 10-unit multiple-family condominium complex for 
the property located at 1855 Austin Avenue.  Mohamed Annan, 
owner/applicant; Elias Saliba, Architect, representative. 

Staff: Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

5. Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-09, a request to approve a 
conditional use permit for a new tire sales and service facility located on a 
portion of a 12.9 acre property located at the northeast corner of Herndon and 
Helm Avenues. Peter Klein Trustee, Owners; America’s Tire, Halle Properties, 
applicant; Sol Development, representative. 

Staff: Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

6. Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-10, A request to approve a 
conditional use permit for a bar with ancillary micro brewing at 2700 Clovis 
Avenue, suites 103 and 104. Rodney and Dana Heinrich, owners; Ish Brewing 
Company, LLC., applicant. 

Staff: Lily Cha, Assistant Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Meetings and Key Issues 
October 25, 2018 6:00 P.M. Regular Meeting   Council Chamber 
November 5, 2018  6:00 P.M. Joint Meeting with Council Council Chamber 
November 15, 2018 6:00 P.M. Regular Meeting Council Chamber 
December 20, 2018 6:00 P.M. Regular Meeting Council Chamber 
January 24, 2019 6:00 P.M. Regular Meeting Council Chamber 
February 28, 2019 6:00 P.M. Regular Meeting Council Chamber 

 
 

  

3



AGENDA ITEM: 1 
 

CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
September 27, 2018 

 
A regular meeting of the Clovis Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair 
Hinkle in the Clovis Council Chamber.  
 
Flag salute led by Commissioner Cunningham 
 
Present: Commissioners Antuna, Bedsted, Cunningham, Hatcher, Chair Hinkle 
   
Absent:  None 
 
Staff:    Bryan Araki, City Planner 
  Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
  George Gonzalez, Associate Planner 
  Lily Cha, Assistant Planner 
  Maria Spera, Planning Technician II 
  Joyce Roach, Planning Assistant 
  Sean Smith, Associate Civil Engineer 
  Michael Linden, Assistant City Attorney 
   
MINUTES 
 

1. The Commission approved the August 23, 2018, minutes by a vote of 5-0.   
 
COMMISSION SECRETARY 
 
City Planner Bryan Araki reminded the Commission that on October 1

st
 will be a City Council 

joint meeting with Clovis Unified School District and they are welcome to attend, and also that 
the following month will be the joint Council-Commission meeting. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Antuna expressed gratitude to the Planning and Development Services 
Department for allowing the Commission to be part of the Hall of Fame dinner honoring PDS 
Director Dwight Kroll, and praised the video presented during the dinner. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham echoed the comments. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REFERRALS 
 
Items related to Agenda Items X-4, X-6, and X-7. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 
None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
None 

4



 

  
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2. Consider approval Res. 18-__, CUP2018-04, A request to approve a conditional use 
permit for a 10-unit multiple-family condominium complex for the property located at 
1855 Austin Avenue. Mohamed Annan, owner/applicant; Elias Saliba, Architect, 
representative. 

 
Deputy City Planner Orlando Ramirez requested a continuance to the October 25, 2018, 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Applicant Mohamed Annan confirmed his request for a continuance, explaining that it is to allow 
him time to work with neighbors. 
 
Chair Hinkle expressed gratitude to Mr. Annan for working with his neighbors on this project. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to anyone wishing to speak on this. 
 
There being none, the Commission approved by consensus to continue the project to October 
25, 2018. 
 

3. Consider approval Res. 18-46, V2018-02, A request to approve a variance to reduce the 
street side setback requirements of the R-1 (Single-Family Medium Density) Zone 
District for lot 110 of Tract 6181, located at the northeast corner of Shaw and Leonard 
Avenues. Century Communities, applicant/owner; Urpi Arriola, representative. 

 
Planning Technician II Maria Spera presented the staff report.   
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to the applicant. 
 
Dennis Gaab with Century Communities, 7815 N. Palm Avenue, Fresno, provided a brief 
background statement and offered to answer any questions. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
There being none, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Bedsted and seconded by Commissioner 
Hatcher to approve V2018-02.  The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0.  
 

4. Consider items associated with approximately 18.13 acres of land located at the 
northeast corner of Ashlan and Locan Avenues. Peter G. & Laura L. Herzog Trs., 
Sonrise Baptist Church of Clovis, CA, owners; Wilson Premier Homes, Inc., applicant; 
Harbour & Associates, representative. 

 
a. Consider Approval, Res. 18-47, A request to approve an environmental finding of a 

Mitigated Negative Declaration for General Plan Amendment GPA2018-01, Rezone 
R2018-07, and Vesting Tentative Tract Map TM6225. 

5



 

  
 

 

b. Consider Approval, Res. 18-48, GPA2018-01, A request to amend the General Plan 
and Loma Vista Specific Plan to re-designate approximately 11.37 acres of land 
from Public/Quasi-Public Facilities classification to Medium High Density Residential 
(7.1 to 15.0 DU/Ac) classification. 

 

c. Consider Approval, Res. 18-49, R2018-07, A request to approve a rezone of 
approximately 18.13 acres of land from the R-A (Single-Family Residential – 24,000 
Sq. Ft.) Zone District to the R-1-PRD (Planned Residential Development) and P-F 
(Public Facilities) Zone Districts. 

 

d. Consider Approval, Res. 18-50, TM6225, A request to approve a vesting tentative 
tract map for a 94-lot single-family planned residential development on 
approximately 11.37 acres of land. 

 
Associate Planner George Gonzalez presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham inquired as to how many tract maps the Commission has approved 
lacking sidewalks as this project proposes. Associate Planner Gonzalez referenced a recent 
Woodside project. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham pointed out that one difference is the lack of proposed gating for 
this project, expressing concern regarding traffic entering and exiting the development and 
potentially endangering pedestrians due to the lack of sidewalk. City Planner Bryan Araki 
provided examples of similar, previously-approved projects. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham asked if the discussion of streets will be part of the joint meeting 
with the City Council.  City Planner Bryan Araki indicated that it was likely it will be part of the 
discussion. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to what sorts of uses could be developed on this property if 
the designation remained Public/Quasi-Public Facilities. Associate Planner Gonzalez provided 
some examples. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham inquired as to the proposed use for the previous, denied project at 
this location in 2013. Associate Planner Gonzalez responded that the denial was for a senior 
housing facility with ancillary commercial uses. City Planner Araki clarified that this previous 
project was for the southern third of the project site. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that a lot line adjustment not only would be 
needed between the church property and the south end property in order to straighten out the 
border between them, but that it had already been completed. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to the applicant. 
 
Dirk Poeschel of 923 Van Ness Avenue, Fresno, provided some background information on the 
project and offered to answer questions. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham inquired as to the thought process behind the lack of sidewalks in 
the project. Mr. Poeschel provided an explanation. 

6



 

  
 

 
Commissioner Cunningham followed up by seeking and receiving confirmation that the 
development would be ungated. He expressed concern about there being nothing to prevent 
speeders from traversing the development streets, then inquired as to the width of the streets. 
Mr. Poeschel responded that the streets are a typical width, thirty-six feet curb-to-curb. 
 
Chair Hinkle corrected the applicant regarding the placement of the trail on the east side of the 
project site. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
Blake Simon of 2950 Richert Avenue stated that he had attended a meeting with the applicant, 
expressed concern regarding the proposed density of the project and potential overflow 
parking, and also regarding the change to the view from his property. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to Mr. Simon’s opinion regarding the placement of four-story, fifty foot 
tall buildings on the subject property. Mr. Simon responded that such a development would be 
out of place. Chair Hinkle followed up with a recommendation that Mr. Simon stay for the end of 
the meeting in light of that view, explaining that similar concerns have been raised before the 
Planning Commission previously and that sometimes it is better to accept the project before you 
than what may come down the road. He recommended Mr. Simon remain to learn what will be 
the other option for this site. 
 
Chris Gardner of 3070 Holland Avenue, who had submitted an item of correspondence, 
expressed concern regarding the lack of paseos in the project and the density change, 
particularly on the north end of the project, stating that the setbacks, lot widths, and lack of 
sidewalks and paseos are all inadequate. He also stated that he had driven through a similar 
neighborhood as indicated by a letter from the applicant, and found it overcrowded by cars with 
limited mobility due to street widths and setbacks, referencing a similar approved McCaffrey 
project with parking overflowing onto Locan Avenue. 
 
At this point, the Chair reopened the floor to the applicant. 
 
Mr. Poeschel stated that the letter referenced by the Mr. Gardner is for the Elevations project, 
not this one, and clarified the differences between the two projects regarding street widths, 
setbacks, and parking space. 
 
At this point, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to whether there is reason to be concerned regarding 
correspondence from Clovis Unified School District stating that it cannot necessarily 
accommodate the population change associated with the proposed rezoning. Associate Planner 
Gonzalez responded that similar letters have been received in the past for residential projects 
and that they reflect concern rather than opposition and a continuing discussion between the 
city and the school district. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought confirmation that a recent announcement had been made regarding a new 
school east of the subject site. City Planner Araki responded that a new elementary school is 

7



 

  
 

under construction and a high school campus would be further developed, both south of the 
project site. The school district has some room in their numbers but are monitoring the situation 
closely as attendance is getting close to being impacted. 
 
Commissioner Antuna inquired as to the mechanism for determining contribution to public parks 
for an infill project such as this. Associate Planner Gonzalez and Leo Wilson of 7550 N. Palm 
Avenue, Fresno, provided an explanation. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought confirmation that, as this site is not be part of the paseo system, the 
applicant only needs to provide access. City Planner Araki provided clarification on this and on 
the issue of treatment of the entries to identify them as private streets. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to the necessity of restricting left turns at the south end of the tract 
map, where Locan Avenue connects to Ashlan Avenue, for traffic safety. Associate Civil 
Engineer Sean Smith explained that there is an Engineering condition to place a physical 
median at that point to prevent left-in left-out turns too close to the signal light. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to whether there will be paving walkways to facilitate the transport of 
totes from streets to back yards, as the laying of bark seems to discourage this transport, 
resulting in the totes remaining on the streets in other projects nearby. He intends to bring up 
the issue of requiring this from now on in the joint City Council meeting. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham inquired as to whether the subject of no sidewalks had come up in 
discussions with the Police Department regarding this project, as he is concerned about 
pedestrian safety. City Planner Araki responded that the issue occasionally comes up but is 
generally not an issue with staff, providing details on which aspects of traffic were examined 
more closely and why.  
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by 
Commissioner Hatcher to approve a finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for GPA2018-
01, R2018-07, and TM6225. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by 
Commissioner Hatcher to approve GPA2018-01. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by 
Commissioner Hatcher to approve R2018-07. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by 
Commissioner Hatcher to approve TM6225 with a modification to setbacks standard. The 
motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 

5. Consider approval Res. 18-51, CUP2018-08, A request to approve a conditional use 
permit to allow for the addition of two modular buildings (a classroom and library) and an 
increase in the number of students from 120 students to 220, at an existing private 
school facility located at 108 N. Villa Avenue. Charlie Keyan Armenian Community 
School, owner/applicant; Shaunt Yemenjian, AIA, representative. 

 
Deputy City Planner Orlando Ramirez presented the staff report. 
 

8



 

  
 

At this point, the Chair opened the floor to the applicant. 
 
Shaunt Yemenjian of 5280 N. Vicewood Avenue, provided background on the project and 
offered to answer questions. 
 
Commissioner Bedsted sought and received confirmation as to the start and stop times for the 
school. Mr. Yemenjian also mentioned that a neighbor had expressed concern regarding 
basketballs going over the fence, hence the relocation of the basketball court to be adjacent to 
the Japanese church parking lot to the northwest. 
 
Commissioner Bedsted stated that he had noticed that the staff for a daycare down the street 
tended to park on the street and inquired as to how many of the school’s staff also parked on 
the Villa Avenue, as that type of overflow parking tended to cause traffic issues. Mr. Yemenjian 
provided details regarding the school’s parking situation. 
 
Curtis Shamlin of 434 E. Cole Avenue, Fresno, the principal of the school, also provided 
background information on the project.  
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
There being none, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Hatcher and seconded by Commissioner 
Antuna to approve CUP2018-08. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 

6. Consider approval Res. 18-__, CUP2018-10, A request to approve a conditional use 
permit for a bar with ancillary micro brewing at 2700 Clovis Avenue, Suites 103 and 104. 
Rodney and Dana Heinrich, owners; Ish Brewing Company, LLC., applicant. 

 
Assistant Planner Lily Cha requested a continuance to the October 25, 2018, Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham inquired as to the identity of the writer of one of the pieces of 
correspondence in the memo supplied to the Commission regarding this item. Assistant Planner 
Cha responded that the correspondent had not provided their information. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
Camelia Brown of 266 Dewitt Avenue, writer of the aforementioned anonymous email, 
expressed her desire to have her questions regarding the operation of the brewery answered as 
she would in effect have a bar in her backyard. She also expressed concern for the early-rising, 
hard-working residents of the neighborhood due to potential noise from the business. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham stated that he had driven by the subject site and noticed that the 
alleyway separating the businesses from the residences to the west (including Ms. Brown’s) 
was blocked off and appeared to be in disrepair. He inquired of Ms. Brown as to whether, to her 

9



 

  
 

knowledge, any vehicles were permitted in the alley. Ms. Brown responded that as far as she 
knows, no vehicles are allowed there, but that there has been significant noise from the 
businesses using the alley like a backyard. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham apologized, explaining that he dislikes receiving anonymous 
correspondence. Ms. Brown apologized, explaining that she had written the email in a hurry 
during her lunch break. Assistant Planner Cha pointed out that she did respond to Ms. Brown’s 
email and provided the project’s operational statement, which includes the operational hours. 
Ms. Brown responded that she hadn’t yet had a chance to read that response. 
 
Chair Hinkle invited Ms. Brown to return on October 25

th
 and to check online to ensure that the 

project would be scheduled for that session. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher pointed out a typo in the staff report. 
 
At this point, the Commission approved by consensus to continue the project to October 25, 
2018. 
 

7. Consider approval Res. 18-52, CUP2018-11, A request to approve a conditional use 
permit to allow for seasonal outdoor recreation and entertainment events for the 
property located at 841 Clovis Avenue. Hodges Investment Group, LLC, owner; Shanna 
Collotzi and Jeff Spraetz, applicants. 

 
Planning Assistant Joyce Roach presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Antuna sought and received confirmation that the submitted parking agreement 
meant that the applicant would be able to use Flooring Liquidator’s parking lot after the 
business closes.  
 
Commissioner Antuna followed up with an inquiry into the operational hours for Flooring 
Liquidators. Planning Assistant Roach responded that staff did not have that information was 
not available at this time. 
 
Commissioner Antuna inquired as to the proposed hours of operation for the event. Planning 
Assistant Roach responded with the proposed hours. 
 
Commissioner Antuna sought and received confirmation that the applicants intend to hold an 
event during Rodeo Week that would include live entertainment and food vendors. 
 
Commissioner Antuna expressed concern regarding the limited parking and the traffic intensity 
of Clovis Avenue. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham sought and received confirmation that the photos in the memo 
provided for this item were sent anonymously. He noted for the record that, if the photos are 
considered, there are no dates to indicate that the photographed flyer and activity are for this 
year rather than a different one, especially as he had driven by the site three days previous and 
noted no such facility present. Assistant Planner Cha responded that staff had driven by the site 
the previous day and noted that the site had been enclosed, and that the tent in the pictures 
was up this morning. Commissioner Cunningham expressed his objection to anonymous 
correspondence based on lack of ability to verify and lack of dates. 

10



 

  
 

 
Commissioner Bedsted inquired as to whether there is a condition requiring each event be 
fenced in or enclosed. His concern was for the safety of children there for the attractions, with 
the level of traffic intensity on Clovis Avenue. Assistant Planner Cha responded that there is no 
such condition of approval currently, as the submitted site plan indicated gating around the 
property, but that such a condition could be added if the Commission wished. In addition, the 
subject site is currently fenced off by chain link fence, which may be visible in the memo photos. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to how many parking stalls would be available if the project 
is approved. City Planner Araki deferred this question to the applicants. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to when this project was brought to staff for consideration and addition 
to the Planning Commission agenda. Assistant Planner Cha responded that the proposal had 
been put forward for Development Review Committee in mid-August. Chair Hinkle sought and 
received confirmation that it was not in time for the previous Planning Commission meeting, 
with the September meeting being the earliest able to accommodate the project with proper 
noticing. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to whether approval of this conditional use permit would invalidate the 
previously-approved conditional use permit for vehicle sales. City Planner Araki responded that 
it would not, explaining that that approval was grandfathered in with the zoning of the property. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to the applicant. 
 
Shanna Collotzi of 841 Clovis Avenue provided background on the project. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that the applicant understands the process for 
acquiring a conditional use permit, then inquired if the applicants felt that they had the right to 
circumvent this process, putting up the tent before going through the necessary steps for 
approval. Ms. Collotzi apologized, having believed that it would be acceptable to secure the 
area and put up the tent in order to meet the October event dates, with the understanding that 
they would have to take down the tent if the project did not receive approval. 
 
Chair Hinkle expressed dissatisfaction with the applicants circumventing the process, stating 
that such actions raise doubt for him that they will respect rules or adhere to conditions that are 
set for the project. Ms. Collotzi again apologized, stating that they were working with Associate 
Civil Engineer Smith regarding ADA improvements and that she didn’t realize they would be 
circumventing the conditional use permit process. 
 
Chair Hinkle inquired as to whether the applicants intend to run any events in conflict with Big 
Hat Days or other functions put on by other organizations. Ms. Collotzi responded in the 
negative, providing an explanation. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham echoed the concerns of the Chair, citing a case of a different 
conditional use permit wherein the applicant performed the work before their request to do so 
was heard by the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham sought and received confirmation that objects visible in the memo 
pictures are boxes of pumpkins. He expressed dissatisfaction with everything being set up for 
the first event before the project has been heard by the Commission, as that is not how the 

11



 

  
 

process works. Ms. Collotzi responded that they had been hoping to have their project heard 
during the August Planning Commission meeting and had not understood in the Development 
Review Committee meeting that they were too late for that. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to whether the applicants own the subject property, thereby 
granting them the right to put up a tent. Ms. Collotzi explained that the property is owned by 
Hodges Investment Group, from whom they lease it for their day-to-day business. City Planner 
Araki confirmed that there is a process for businesses to put up tents, seasonal decorations are 
encouraged, and that staff would want to review fencing through a permitting process. He also 
confirmed that the applicants are aware that they were taking an expensive risk, and that there 
were timing issues with scheduling this project for Planning Commission. Deputy City Planner 
explained that the Fire Department had done a preliminary inspection that found no issues, but 
that it would be formalized on Monday, October 1

st
. 

 
Commissioner Antuna expressed concern regarding small children being attracted to events on 
a street busy enough that she herself sometimes has difficulty getting out of her car when 
parked on Clovis Avenue due to the frequency and speed of traffic. She expressed approval of 
this type of project but is concerned about the location, due to that safety issue as well as 
concern over how the project events would affect traffic flow on Clovis Avenue. Ms. Collotzi 
echoed the concern for the safety of small children, providing some statements regarding traffic 
and parking for the site. 
 
Associate Civil Engineer Smith stated that the traffic issue was not one covered previously, as 
he was not aware of the applicants’ parking plan and had instead been discussing 
improvements in the property’s drive approach, trash enclosures, and fencing. He explained 
that the improvements were being deferred until a large enough period between events to 
implement them without creating safety issues for customers. 
 
Jeff Spraetz of 841 Clovis Avenue also provided background on the project. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
There being none, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
Commissioner Antuna assured all of her attention to and appreciation of all of the applicants’ 
statements as well as the Commission’s desire for business and special events to come to 
Clovis, but expressed her doubt regarding the suitability of this particular location. 
 
Commissioner Bedsted expressed that he shares Commissioner Antuna’s concern, hence his 
attention to the fencing issue. He approved of the possibility of full enclosure of the Clovis 
Avenue frontage as a procedural safeguard. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher expressed her approval of this idea, suggesting the addition of a 
condition requiring the enclosure of the Clovis Avenue frontage. While she understands the 
concern about somewhat circumventing procedure, she also understands that there were timing 
issues and applauded the applicants’ courage in taking that risk, and believes that this is a good 
idea. 
 

12



 

  
 

Commissioner Cunningham recognized the time constraints under which the applicants were 
operating, but stated that the commissioners put in a lot of time and effort, nearly as volunteers, 
and will not react well when it seems that the Commission is being ignored. He expressed his 
appreciation of Commissioner Antuna’s concern regarding location and suggested adding 
conditions to mitigate that concern. 
 
Chair Hinkle expressed his disapproval of applicants going around the Commission, as it exists 
to serve the people of Clovis and ensure that things are done properly. He also expressed 
doubt about this location being appropriate for this project and concern regarding the applicants 
adhering to conditions, wondering as to the possible actions to be taken in such an event and 
the possible costs of correction. He views this project as having a bad start that will set the 
trend for its future. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher expressed understanding of the Chair’s point while also expressing her 
belief in the unfairness of penalizing an applicant and something potentially beneficial to the 
City due to timing issues. 
 
Chair Hinkle responded that he also sees safety issues. 
 
City Planner Araki explained that one of the conditions of approval was amended to state that 
the conditional use permit will be reviewed in one year’s time and recommended potentially 
bringing the project, if approved, back for review after the holiday season, near the time the 
applicants would need to begin the improvements. This would give City staff a chance to 
evaluate how the project worked, if it was truly a benefit to the community, and work with the 
applicant on the parking issue. 
 
Ms. Collotzi and Mr. Spraetz interjected with clarification on parking and site access. 
 
Commissioner Antuna sought and received confirmation, with a detailed explanation, that the 
fence currently up on the property completely closes off site access to Clovis Avenue. 
 
Chair Hinkle suggested making conditions of use that there will be no access from the Clovis 
Avenue side, having it be completely fenced off during these events, and reviewing the project 
in January after the holiday season. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by 
Commissioner Hatcher to approve CUP2018-11 with added conditions to use fencing to 
preclude access from Clovis Avenue and to review the conditional use permit for compliance at 
the January 24

th
, 2019, Planning Commission meeting. The motion was approved by a vote of 

5-0. 
 

8. Consider items associated with the 2015-2023 Housing Element’s Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment. City of Clovis, applicant. 

 

a. Consider Approval, Res. 18-53, GPA2018-05, A text modification to the General 
Plan to add Multiple-Family Housing to the list of typical uses in Public, Schools, and 
Water designations and add the RHN (Regional Housing Needs) Zone District as a 
typical use within residential zoned properties. 

 

13



 

  
 

b. Consider Approval, Res. 18-54, OA2018-03, A text modification to the Development 
Code to provide for Multiple-Family Housing as a permitted use in the P-F (Public 
Facility) Zone District and to add a new RHN (Regional Housing Needs) overlay 
zone district 

 
City Planner Bryan Araki presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Cunningham commended staff for working under a very difficult situation, then 
sought and received confirmation that the driving force behind this is the state government 
setting minimum standards, with the City, already out of compliance, attempting to meet 
standards that appear designed for cities such as San Francisco and Los Angeles while also 
attempting to meet the needs of citizens who are in favor of less density in development. 
 
City Planner Araki also commended staff for their efforts and finding ways to do things outside 
of the box, particularly Heidi Crabtree and Andy Haussler of the Housing and Economic 
Development Department. 
 
Commissioner Hatcher sought and received clarification on the phrase “residential permitted 
with no area restriction.” 
 
Commissioner Antuna sought confirmation that there are developers interested in building this 
product. City Planner Araki responded that there are developers interested in building at a high 
density, and that though there hasn’t been interest yet at this higher range, the City needs to be 
prepared with zoning to accommodate it if/when it does come. 
 
Commissioner Antuna followed up by seeking and receiving confirmation that there are areas 
identified where this development can occur. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that, pending adoption of this program, the 
properties surrounding the church reviewed earlier under GPA2018-01, could potentially have 
forty units per acre at forty feet, if the current project is not approved. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that the infill lot on Nees Avenue between Willow 
and Peach Avenues, which has come before the Planning Commission twice before with 
projects that were eventually denied, is on the list of properties that would fall under this 
program, hence his advice to the public to consider carefully before opposing a project in light 
of what may be allowed under new state legislation. City Planner Araki confirmed that not only 
is this property a perfect match for the program, but that the neighbor opposition to the previous 
proposals will not result in it being removed from the list. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that the applicable lots are dispersed throughout 
Clovis and that no recharge ponding basins or currently necessary flood control facilities will be 
used or are even included in consideration currently. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that this program may change in the future, and 
that he can personally see developers from the Bay Area coming to take advantage of it. 
 
At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 

14



 

  
 

 
There being none, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Antuna and seconded by Commissioner 
Hatcher to approve GPA2018-05. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
At this point a motion was made by Commissioner Antuna and seconded by Commissioner 
Hatcher to approve OA201-03. The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
  
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT AT 8:24 P.M. UNTIL the Planning Commission meeting on October 25, 2018. 

15



 

TM6076 Extension 10/17/2018 4:11:15 PM Page 1 of 4 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, A request to approve the second one-year 
extension to an approved tentative map for property located at the 
northeast corner of Dakota and Clovis Avenues.  Clovis Colony 
Investors, LLC, owner/applicant. 

ATTACHMENTS: A. Request for Extension 
B. Tentative Tract Map TM6076 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve an extension of Tentative Map 
TM6076. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is requesting the second one-year extension for Tentative Tract Map 
TM6076 per the California Subdivision Map Act.  The property is located near the 
northeast corner of Dakota and Clovis Avenues.  Approval of the extension will allow the 
applicant to continue working toward development of an approved multiple-family 
condominium development on the parcel. 
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 

 
Tentative Tract Map TM6076, is a one lot map which established the boundaries for a 
future condominium development.  The map was approved concurrently with a rezone 
and conditional use permit for a 144-unit apartment/condominium development near the 
northeast corner of Dakota and Clovis Avenues.  
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO: 2 

  

16



Planning Commission Report 
TM6076 Extension 

October 25, 2018 
 

TM6076 Extension 10/17/2018 4:11:15 PM Page 2 of 4 

Tentative Tract Map TM6076 was originally approved by the Planning Commission on 
August 28, 2014, and Council on October 20, 2014.  As provided for in the Subdivision 
Map Act, an original approval period is granted for three years, after which the applicant 
may request up to five extensions in one-year increments.  This is the second request. 
 
The applicant is requesting a one-year extension for Tentative Tract Map TM6076 which 
would extend the approval to October 20, 2019.   
  
Findings for Approval 
 
The findings to consider when making a decision on a tentative map extension include: 

 

1. There have been no changes to the provisions of the General Plan, any 

applicable specific plan, or this Development Code applicable to the project 

since the approval of the tentative map. 

Staff’s Response:  Since the approval of TM6076, both the General Plan and 

Development Code have been updated.  However, there have been no changes to 

the provisions of tentative maps that impact approval of an extension. 

2. There have been no changes in the character of the site or its surroundings 

that affect how the policies of the General Plan, any applicable specific plan, 

or other standards of this Development Code apply to the project. 

Staff’s Response:  The property has remained vacant since the original map approval 

and although there has been demolition of buildings on adjacent properties, the 

change does not affect the tentative map approval.     

3. There have been no changes to the capacities of community resources, 

including but not limited to water supply, sewage treatment or disposal 

facilities, roads, or schools so that there is no longer sufficient remaining 

capacity to serve the project. 

Staff’s Response:  Staff concurs that there have been no change to community 

resources and can accommodate the Project. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
This Project is in substantial conformance with the environmental analysis performed for 
Rezone R2014-06, CUP2014-07, and TM6076.  No major revisions will be required with 
the adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration to accommodate the proposed project, 
therefore, subject to CEQA Sections 15162 and 15182 no further environmental review 
is required for this project. 
 

17



Planning Commission Report 
TM6076 Extension 

October 25, 2018 
 

TM6076 Extension 10/17/2018 4:11:15 PM Page 3 of 4 

 The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, 
October 10, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed extension request is consistent with the General Plan, Development Code, 
and Subdivision Map Act.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
approve a one-year extension for TM6076. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
None 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
 Property owners within 300 feet notified: 97 
 Interested individuals notified:  10 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Bryan Araki, City Planner 
 

 
 
 
 

 
J:\Planning Projects\Tract Maps\TM 6000's\TM6076 (Extensions)\PC 10-25-2018\TM6076 Extension PC Staff Report.docx

18



Planning Commission Report 
TM6076 Extension 

October 25, 2018 
 

TM6076 Extension 10/17/2018 4:11:15 PM Page 4 of 4 

FIGURE 1 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
 

19



20



21



 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 1 of 9 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, Res. 18-__, CUP2017-10A, A request to 
approve an amendment to the side yard setback requirements of 
Conditional Use Permit CUP2017-10 within Tentative Map TM6186. 
WCP Developers, LLC, owner/applicant. 

ATTACHMENTS: Figure 1:                   Location Map 
Exhibit “A:”               CUP2017-10A Conditions of  Approval 
Attachment 1:  Draft Resolution 
Attachment 2:           City Council Resolution 18-22 (TM6186) 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve CUP2017-10A, subject to the 
conditions of approval listed as Exhibit “A.” 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is requesting to amend the side yard setback requirements for interior and 
corner lots within Tentative Tract Map TM6186 located at the southeast corner of Bullard 
and Leonard Avenues.  The requested side yard setback modification would apply to lots 
located adjacent to public streets and lots located within the gated community of the 
project.  Approval of this Project would allow the developer to continue processing 
development drawings. 
 
 
 
 

 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO: 3 

  

22



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 2 of 9 

BACKGROUND 
 

 General Plan Designation: Medium Density Residential (7.1 to 15.0 DU/Ac) 

 Specific Plan Designation: Loma Vista Specific Plan (Medium Density 
Residential) 

 Existing Zoning: R-1 (Single Family Residential) 

 Lot Size:  36.75 acres 

 Current Land Use: Vacant 

 Adjacent Land Uses: North:    Agriculture & Rural Residential  
  South:   Single-Family    Residential 
  East:   Single-Family    Residential 

 West: Rural Residential 

 Previous Entitlements: GPA2017-05 (Low Res. to Medium Res.) 
CUP2013-03 (229-lot PRD) 
TM6186  (229-lot single-family subdivision) 
R2014-14      (County AE-20 to R-1) 

 
In January 2018, the City Council considered a 229-lot single-family planned residential 
development on the subject site, which included public and private streets and open space 
area.  The City Council voted to approve General Plan Amendment GPA2017-05 and 
associated entitlements for the Project on January 16, 2018. 

 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
 
Proposal  
 
The applicant is requesting a modification of the approved side yard setback to living/ 
building for lots within Tentative Tract Map TM6186.  Approved setbacks for the Project 
included a five (5’) foot side yard setback on the garage side and a three (3’) foot side yard 
setback on the opposite side.  The applicant is requesting a modification which would 
provide for a four (4’) foot setback on the garage side and a four (4’) foot side yard setback 
on the opposite side.   
 
The applicant is requesting this change due to Building Code regulations associated with 
structures located at three (3’) from the property line.  Specifically, the applicant is 
concerned with egress clearance from windows and the distance from future placement of 
fences and/or walls.  Similar setbacks may be found within Tentative Tract Map TM6064, 
located at the southwest corner of Barstow and Leonard Avenues and within Tentative 
Tract Map TM6055, located on the south side of Barstow Avenue, between DeWolf and 
Leonard Avenues. 
 
The Commission has had concerns regarding reduced side yard setbacks, specifically 
related to trash toters.  If the side yard is too narrow to place toters and comfortably 
maneuver around them, it is possible that the homeowner would leave the toters in front of 

23



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 3 of 9 

the home which is normally a violation of the Municipal Code §5.27.101(i).  However, this 
section relates to leaving toters in the front yard viewable from a public street.  Because 
this tract is primarily served by private streets, the requirement to place toters out of view 
does not apply to most streets in this development.  However, the intent of the Code is to 
prevent an aesthetic nuisance to the neighborhood.  Staff therefore recommend a condition 
that requires the toters to be placed behind the gate, and enforced by the Homeowners 
Association.  Secondly, there is concern that by reducing the side yard, it could create 
additional obstacles for fire and medical personnel if access to the backyard is necessary.     
 
A four-foot side yard provides a net area of approximately 42.5” between the home wall 
finish and the fence posts.  Toters measure 30”x35”x45” tall.  When placed in the side yard 
with the toter pushed against the fence, there is a clear area of 12” to 16” depending on 
fence post placement (see figure below).  As stated, the Commission and Council have 
approved four-foot side yard setbacks in the past. 

 
 

FIGURE A – Toter in Side Yard 

 
Homeowners Association 
 
This project includes a Homeowners Association (HOA) which provides maintenance of 
open space, and enforcement of parking.  Staff recommends that a condition of approval is 
added to this conditional use permit requiring that the HOA is responsible for enforcement 
of toter storage in the side yards if and when complaints are submitted. 

24



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 4 of 9 

 
Public Comments 
 
A public notice was sent to area residents within 300 feet of the property boundaries.  Staff 
has not received comments or concerns from the public upon finalization of this report. 
 
Community Facilities District 
 
The fiscal analysis of the Loma Vista Specific Plan identified possible long-term funding 
shortfalls in the Clovis’ Citywide operating and maintenance costs.  To address this issue 
the City of Clovis implemented a Community Facilities District.  Community Facilities 
Districts (CFD’s) are a means of providing additional funding for the provision of public 
facilities and services for public safety in newly developing areas of the community where 
the city would not otherwise be able to afford to continue to provide an adequate level of 
service as the City continues to grow.  The use of CFD’s is fairly common among cities in 
California experiencing high rates of growth, such as Clovis, due to significant losses of 
local revenue from tax shifts authorized by the State of California and the need to continue 
to provide an adequate level of service as growth occurs. 
 
A condition of approval has been added to this tentative map requiring participation of this 
vesting tentative map in the CFD.  

 
Consistency with General Plan Goals and Policies 
 
Staff has evaluated the Project in light of the General Plan Land Use goals and policies.  
The following goals and policies reflect Clovis' desire to maintain Clovis’ tradition of 
responsible planning and well managed growth to preserve the quality of life in existing 
neighborhoods and ensure the development of new neighborhoods with an equal quality of 
life.  The goals and policies seek to foster more compact development patterns that can 
reduce the number, length, and duration of auto trips.   
 
Goal 3:  Orderly and sustainable outward growth into three Urban Centers with 

neighborhoods that provide a balanced mix of land uses and development types 
to support a community lifestyle and small town character.  

 
Policy 3.2 Individual development project. When projects are proposed in an Urban 

Center, require a conceptual master plan to show how a proposed project could 
relate to possible future development of adjacent and nearby properties. The 
conceptual master plan should generally cover about 160 acres or the adjacent 
area bounded by major arterials, canals, or other major geographical features. 
The conceptual master plan should address:  

 
A. Compliance with the comprehensive design document  
B. A consistent design theme  
C. A mix of housing types  
D. Adequate supply and distribution of neighborhood parks  

25



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 5 of 9 

E. Safe and direct pedestrian and bicycle linkages between residential areas 
and school sites, parks, and community activity centers 

 
Policy 3.3 Completion of Loma Vista. The City prioritizes the completion of Loma Vista 

while allowing growth to proceed elsewhere in the Clovis Planning Area in 
accordance with agreements with the County of Fresno and LAFCo policies. 

 
Policy 3.5 Fiscal sustainability. The City shall require establishment of community facility 

districts, lighting and landscaping maintenance districts, special districts, and 
other special funding or financing tools in conjunction with or as a condition of 
development, building or permit approval, or annexation or sphere of influence 
amendments when necessary to ensure that new development is fiscally neutral 
or beneficial.  

 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
  
This project is in substantial conformance with the environmental analysis performed for 
GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10 and TM6186.  No major revisions will be required with the 
adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration to accommodate the proposed project, therefore, 
subject to CEQA Sections 15162 and 15182 no further environmental review is required for 
this project. 
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, 
October 10, 2018.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed conditional use permit amendment is consistent with the goals and policies 
of the General Plan, Loma Vista Specific Plan and Development Code.  Staff therefore 
recommends that the Planning Commission approve CUP2017-10A, subject to the 
conditions of approval attached as Exhibit “A.” 
 
The findings to consider when making a decision on a conditional use permit amendment 
application include:  
 

1. The planned development permit would: 
a. Be allowed within the subject base zoning district; 
b. Be consistent with the purpose, intent, goals, policies, actions, and land 

use designations of the General Plan and any applicable specific plan; 
c. Be generally in compliance with all of the applicable provisions of this 

Development Code relating to both on- and off-site improvements that are 
necessary to accommodate flexibility in site planning and property 

26



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 6 of 9 

development and to carry out the purpose, intent, and requirements of this 
chapter and the subject base zoning district, including prescribed 
development standards and applicable design guidelines; and 

d. Ensure compatibility of property uses within the zoning district and general 
neighborhood of the proposed development. 

2. The proposed project would produce a comprehensive development of superior 
quality (e.g., appropriate variety of structure placement and orientation 
opportunities, appropriate mix of structure sizes, high quality architectural 
design, increased amounts of landscaping and open space, improved solutions 
to the design and placement of parking facilities, incorporation of a program of 
enhanced amenities, etc.) than which might otherwise occur from more 
traditional development applications; 

3. Proper standards and conditions have been imposed to ensure the protection 
of the public health, safety, and welfare; 

4. Proper on-site traffic circulation and control is designed into the development to 
ensure protection for fire suppression and police surveillance equal to or better 
than what would normally be created by compliance with the minimum setback 
and parcel width standards identified in Division 2 of this title (Zoning Districts, 
Allowable Land Uses, and Zone-Specific Standards); 

5. The subject parcel is adequate in terms of size, shape, topography, and 
circumstances to accommodate the proposed development; 

6. The design, location, operating characteristics, and size of the proposed 
development would be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the 
vicinity, in terms of aesthetic values, character, scale, and view protection. (§ 2, 
Ord. 14-13, eff. October 8, 2014); and 

7. The Planning Commission does find the project in substantial conformance with 
the environmental analysis performed for GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10 and 
TM6186. 

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
This item will continue on to the City Council for final consideration.   
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 
 
 Property owners within 300 feet notified:  70 
 Interested individuals notified:   10 
 
Prepared by:  Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 

 
 

O:\Planning Projects\CUP\CUP 2017\CUP2017-10A (WC TM6186)\PC October 25, 2018\PC Staff Report CUP2017-10A Municode.doc 

27



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 7 of 9 

FIGURE 1 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Conditions of Approval – CUP2017-10A 

28



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 8 of 9 

 
PLANNING DIVISION CONDITIONS 

(Orlando Ramirez, Division Representative – (559) 324-2345) 
 

1. This CUP amendment approves a 4-foot interior/ opposite side yard setback 
for lots within TM6186. 
 

2. All conditions of GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10, TM6186, and any other 
applicable conditions are hereby referred to and made a part of this conditional 
use permit. 

 
3. Setbacks shall be measured to the exterior face of the framing of the structure.  

Exceptions to the setbacks are identified in §9.24.100, of the Clovis 
Development Code. 
  

4. Waste toters shall be stored in the back or side yard behind the fence or gate.  
The HOA shall enforce this condition in the event of comlplaints. 
  

Administration Department Conditions 
(John Holt, Department Representative – (559) 324-2111) 

 
5. Prior to approval, recordation or filing of an annexation, final map, or site plan, 

the property covered by the project shall be included within or annexed to a 
Community Facilities District (CFD), established by the City for the provision of 
public facilities and services, for which proceedings have been consummated, 
and shall be subject to the special tax approved with the formation or 
annexation to the CFD.  The CFD applies only to residential projects. 
 

6. The applicant and the property owner acknowledge and agree that if the 
project were not part of a CFD, the City might lack the financial resources to 
operate facilities and provide public services, such as police protection, fire 
protection, emergency medical services, park and recreation services, street 
maintenance and public transit.  Absent the requirement for inclusion of the 
project within a CFD, the City might not be able to make the finding that the 
project is consistent with the General Plan and relevant specific plans and 
might not be able to make the findings supporting approval of the project as 
required by the Subdivision Map Act and the California Environmental Quality 
Act, and the City might be required to deny the application for the project. 
 

7. The owner/developer shall notify all potential lot buyers prior to sale that this 
project is a part of a Community Facilities District and shall inform potential 
buyers of the special tax amount.  Said notification shall be in a manner 
approved by the City.  This requirement may be waived at the discretion of the 
City Council if, at the time of the approval, recordation or filing of the project, 
the City Council has determined that it is not necessary that the project be 
included in the CFD. 

29



Planning Commission Report 
Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2017-10A 10/17/2018 9:00:37 AM Page 9 of 9 

 
8. The applicants shall reimburse the City for any expense associated with the 

transition agreement for fire services with the Fresno County Fire Protection 
District that would apply to this proposal. 

30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT RESOLUTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

31



DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 18-___ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE SIDE YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

CUP2017-10 WITHIN TENTATIVE TRACT MAP TM6186 FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF BULLARD AND LEONARD AVENUES AND FINDING THE PROJECT IN 

SUBSTANTIAL CONFIRMANCE WITH THE ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS PERFORMED FOR 

GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10 AND TM6186 
 

 WHEREAS, WCP Developments, LLC, 1446 Tollhouse Road, Suite 103, Clovis CA 93611, has 
applied for a Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this is a request to approve an amendment to the side yard setback requirements of 
Conditional Use Permit CUP2017-10 to allow a 4 foot interior/ opposite side yard setback for lots within 
TM6186 for property located at the southeast corner of Bullard and Leonard Avenues, in the City of 
Clovis; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public notice was sent out to area residents within 300 feet of said property 
boundaries ten days prior to said hearing; and  

 

WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on October 25, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Conditional Use Permit Amendment CUP2017-10A, was assessed 
under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the potential effects on the 
environment were considered by the Planning Commission, together with comments received and public 
comments, and the entire public record was reviewed; and   

 

WHEREAS, staff does find this project in substantial conformance with the environmental 
analysis performed for GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10 and TM6186.   

 
WHEREAS, the Commission, has reviewed and considered the staff report and all written 

materials submitted in connection with the request including the conditions attached as Exhibit “A” to this 
resolution and incorporated herein by this reference, and hearing and considering the testimony 
presented during the public hearing; and: 
 

1. The planned development permit would: 
a. Be allowed within the subject base zoning district; 
b. Be consistent with the purpose, intent, goals, policies, actions, and land use 

designations of the General Plan and any applicable specific plan; 
c. Be generally in compliance with all of the applicable provisions of this 

Development Code relating to both on- and off-site improvements that are 
necessary to accommodate flexibility in site planning and property development 
and to carry out the purpose, intent, and requirements of this chapter and the 
subject base zoning district, including prescribed development standards and 
applicable design guidelines; and 

d. Ensure compatibility of property uses within the zoning district and general 
neighborhood of the proposed development. 

 
2. The proposed project would produce a comprehensive development of superior quality 

(e.g., appropriate variety of structure placement and orientation opportunities, appropriate 
mix of structure sizes, high quality architectural design, increased amounts of landscaping 
and open space, improved solutions to the design and placement of parking facilities, 
incorporation of a program of enhanced amenities, etc.) than which might otherwise occur 
from more traditional development applications; 

 

CONFORMANCE
GPA2017-05,

32



3. Proper standards and conditions have been imposed to ensure the protection of the 
public health, safety, and welfare; 

 
4. Proper on-site traffic circulation and control is designed into the development to ensure 

protection for fire suppression and police surveillance equal to or better than what would 
normally be created by compliance with the minimum setback and parcel width standards 
identified in Division 2 of this title (Zoning Districts, Allowable Land Uses, and Zone-
Specific Standards); 

 
5. The subject parcel is adequate in terms of size, shape, topography, and circumstances to 

accommodate the proposed development; 
 
6. The design, location, operating characteristics, and size of the proposed development 

would be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity, in terms of 
aesthetic values, character, scale, and view protection. (§ 2, Ord. 14-13, eff. October 8, 
2014); and 

 
7. The Planning Commission does find the project in substantial conformance with the 

environmental analysis performed for GPA2017-05, CUP2017-10 and TM6186. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clovis Planning Commission does 
approve CUP2017-10A, subject to the attached conditions labeled Exhibit "A." 
            
  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular meeting 
on October 25, 2018, upon a motion by Commissioner _________, seconded by Commissioner 
_________, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 18-__ 
DATED: October 25, 2018 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Paul Hinkle, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Dwight Kroll, AICP, Secretary 
 

33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 18-22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 1 of 9 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-04, A request to approve 
a conditional use permit for a 10-unit multiple-family condominium 
complex for the property located at 1855 Austin Avenue.  Mohamed 
Annan, owner/applicant; Elias Saliba, Architect, representative. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Figure 1:  Location Map 
Exhibit “A:”  Conditions of Approval 
Exhibit “B:”  Site Plan, Floor Plans and Elevations 
Attachment 1:           Draft Resolution 
Attachment 2:           Correspondence from Agencies 
Attachment 3:           Neighborhood Correspondence 

  
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve Conditional Use Permit 
CUP2018-04, subject to the conditions listed in Exhibit “A.”   
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a conditional use permit to allow for the 
development of a 10-unit multiple-family condominium project on approximately 0.7 acres 
of land located at 1855 Austin Avenue.  Approval of this conditional use permit would allow 
the applicant to move forward with the development of the site. 
 
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO: 4 

  

54



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 2 of 9 

BACKGROUND 
 

 General Plan Designation: Medium High Residential (7.1 to 15.0 units per 
acre) 

 Existing Zoning: R-2 (Low Density Multiple-Family Residential) 

 Lot Size: 0.7 Acres 

 Current Land Use: Vacant 

 Adjacent Land Uses: North: Single Family Residential 
 South: Multiple Family Residential and 
Commercial 

East: Vacant and Single/Multiple Family 
Residential 

 West: Day Care and Commercial 

 Previous Entitlements: Rezone R88-09, R88-09A 
 

PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
 
Project Description 
 
The Project is comprised of four parcels and an outlot currently zoned R-2 (Low Density 
Multiple-Family Residential).  Condominium projects are permitted within the R-2 Zone 
District with an approved conditional use permit.  Approval of the use permit would 
provide the applicant ability to develop the site with five buildings comprised of two units 
each for a total of ten multiple-family units.  The two-story units will utilize access from 
Austin Avenue and are proposed as a condominium project for the purpose of providing 
individual ownership for future tenants. Common areas such as access, sidewalks, 
landscaping and approaches have been concentrated within the project, providing 
tenants convenient access to and from the project site from Austin Avenue.  The 
proposal is located on a vacant parcel surrounded by developed commercial, multiple-
family, single-family residential, and a vacant parcel on the east. 
 
Rezone R88-09A 

 
The applicant received City Council approval on September 10, 2018 for an amendment 
to the conditions of approval of Rezone R88-09.  The amendment (R88-09A), removed 
the limitation of a maximum square footage for second story development, providing 
opportunity for future development subject to the Property Development Standards of 
the R-2 Zone District.  Approval included the approval to develop two-story units by right.  
However, the City Council placed a requirement that future Planning Commission 
recommendation of the Project be forwarded for review and consideration by the City 
Council.  Approval of the request by the Planning Commission and City Council would 
allow the developer to move forward with the development of the site. 
 
Planning Commission Continuance 
 

55



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 3 of 9 

The Project was initially scheduled for Planning Commission on September 27, 2018, 
subsequent to the Council’s September 10th approval of the associated zoning 
amendment (R88-09A).  The Council approved the rezone, however provided direction 
that the applicant address site design concerns specific to the proposed placement of 
units that would create greater separation from the north property line.  Based on 
Council direction, the applicant requested a continuance to the October 25th, 2018 
meeting to allow the applicant time to address the concerns expressed by the Council 
and area residents.    
 
Setbacks and Revisions 
 
Initially, the Project included reduced front and rear yard setbacks based on similar 
condominium and planned unit development projects located in the City.  Although the 
associated rezone amendment was considered a textual change generally not requiring 
a site plan, the Council was presented an exhibit that reflected the applicant’s request to 
provide reduced setbacks.  The applicant proposed 16.5-foot setbacks in the front and 
10-foot rear yard setbacks adjacent to existing single-family residences on the north.  
The Project received opposition from area residents directly to the north of the Project, 
warranting the Council to provide additional direction for consideration of the forthcoming 
use permit.   
 
Primary concerns expressed by Council were the proximity of the proposed rear yards 
adjacent to existing single-family homes.  Two abutting neighbors also protested the 
setbacks, requesting a limitation to single-story development.  The applicant felt it 
important to address the concerns of both the Council and area property owners prior to 
presenting the Project for Planning Commission consideration.  The applicant met with 
neighbors on several occasions in anticipation of addressing their concerns.  
Consequently, the applicant has modified the site, proposing the standard 20-foot front 
yard setback and a standard rear yard 20-foot setback from property line.  Additionally, 
the applicant has modified the internal circulation of the site which now reflects the 
potential for reciprocal access to the east, should the adjacent property seek use of a 
shared driveway.    
 
The proposed modifications are reflective of the applicant’s desire to address concerns 
expressed with the initial project layout.  The applicant has indicated that the 
recommendations by staff, the Council and the residents actually provided an 
opportunity to rework the Project, providing for a much more compatible layout that 
reflects standard development setbacks of the R-2 Zone District.  
 
Neighborhood Concerns 
 
Staff received correspondence (Attachment 3) at the City Council rezone hearing from 
two property owners located directly to the north of the project site.  The primary concern 
is with the proposed two-story construction and proximity to their homes.   Subsequent to 
the Council hearing, the applicant met with one or more of the property owners in order 

56



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 4 of 9 

to try and address their concerns.  As indicated previously within the body of this report, 
the applicant has modified the site to provide a greater distance from the property line.  
Unfortunately, neighbors still are in objection to two-story development which is 
permitted by right.   
 
Parking 
 

The Project is required to meet the parking standards of the R-2 Zone District.  The 10-
unit development requires two stalls per every one to two-bedroom units, and three-stalls 
for each three-bedroom unit, with at least one stall per unit being covered.  Based on the 
proposed number of units, the Project is required to include a total of 30 parking stalls, 20 
of which are covered via an attached garage and 10 uncovered stalls.  The Project meets 
the requirement. 
 
Architecture and Aesthetics 

 
The elevations and floor plans (Exhibit “B”) submitted by the applicant show the proposed 
architecture which is consistent with typical multiple-family development in the area.  
 
Parcel Map 
 
A condominium project must be memorialized through a formal Parcel Map review and 
approval.  The applicant has tentative approval of Parcel Map PM2018-09.  Staff has 
included a condition of this requirement within this report.  
 

Review and Comments from Agencies 
 
The project was distributed to all City Divisions as well as outside agencies, including Cal 
Trans, Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan Flood 
Control District, the County of Fresno Department of Public Health, AT&T, PG&E, San 
Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, State Department of Fish and Wildlife, and 
the County of Fresno. 
 
Comments received are attached only if the agency has provided concerns, conditions, or 
mitigation measures. Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the 
administrative record and provided to the applicant for their records. 
 
Infill Development 
   
The .7 acre Project site is one of the last two remaining vacant properties in the area.  
The applicant has an opportunity to utilize the property as infill development for the 
establishment of a multiple-family residential project in accordance with the General Plan 
policies and Development Code requirements noted above. 
 
 

57



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 5 of 9 

 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
The Project is in substantial conformance with the environmental impact report performed 
for the 2014 General Plan. No major revisions will be required with the adopted 
Environmental Impact Report to accommodate the proposed project, therefore subject to 
CEQA sections 15162 and 15182, no further environmental review is required for this 
project. 
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, 
October 10, 2018.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed conditional use permit is consistent with the goals and policies of the 
General Plan and Development Code. Staff therefore recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve CUP2018-04, subject to the conditions of approval attached as 
Exhibit “A.” 
 
The findings to consider when making a decision on a conditional use permit application 
include:  

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the 
integrity and character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with 
all of the applicable provisions of this Development Code; 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable 
specific plan; 

3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use 
are compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create 
significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be 
objectionable or detrimental to other allowed uses operating nearby or adverse 
to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or welfare of the City; 

4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 
density/intensity of use being proposed; 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public 
utilities and services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental 
to public health and safety; and 

6. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no 
potential significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural 

58



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 6 of 9 

resources that would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless findings 
are made in compliance with CEQA. (§ 2, Ord. 14-13, eff. October 8, 2014). 

 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
This item will continue to the City Council for final consideration. 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 
 
 Property owners within 500 feet notified: 90 
 Interested individuals notified:  11 
 
 
Prepared by:  Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
 
 

 
 
 

J:\Planning Projects\CUP\CUP 2018\CUP2018-04 (M. Annan)\PC 10-25-2018\CUP2018-04, PC Staff Report 

 
 
 
 

59



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 7 of 9 

FIGURE 1 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

60



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 8 of 9 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Conditions of Approval – CUP2018-04 

 
PLANNING DIVISION CONDITIONS 

(Orlando Ramirez, Division Representative – (559) 324-2345) 
 

1. Development of this site shall be consistent with the General Plan, Medium 
High Density Residential Designation. 

 
2. CUP2018-04 is approved for a 10-unit, two-story multiple-family condominium 

project per Exhibit “B” of the staff report.  Any major modifications or increase 
in the number of units will require an amendment to the conditional use permit. 

 
3. Setbacks shall be measured to the exterior face of the framing of the structure.  

Exceptions to the setbacks are identified in §9.24.100, of the Clovis 
Development Code. 
 

4. Prior to construction, the applicant shall have on file, an approved and 
recorded parcel map creating the individual parcels. 
 

5. Development on the Project site shall include the standards of the R-2 Zone 
District: 
 

 Front Yard Setback:   20 Feet 

 Side Yard Setback:     5 Feet 

 Rear Yard Setback:   20 Feet 
 

6. Maximum building height shall not exceed thirty-five (35) feet. 
 

7. Prior to final of any development, the developer shall construct a six-foot high 
masonry wall along the north property line. 
 

8. This conditional use permit may be reviewed after a period of one year.  Clovis 
Planning staff may conduct a review of this use in regards to the conditions of 
approval and may present findings of review to the Planning Commission. 
 

9. Landscaping shall comply with CMC section 6.5.501 et seq., Water Efficient 
Landscape Requirements, as amended in March 2010. 
 

10. The applicant shall comply with Section 9-3.215.6 of the Clovis Zone 
Ordinance requiring a Site Plan Review.  Elevations and a colors and 
materials board shall be submitted during this process. 
 
 

 

61



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-04 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-04 10/17/2018 4:33:30 PM Page 9 of 9 

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONDITONS 
(Gary Sawhill, Department Representative - 324-2224) 

 
11. Residential Fire Sprinklers: The applicant shall install an automatic fire 

sprinkler system in all new one- and two-family dwellings and manufactured 
homes as per NFPA 13D, 2016.  

12. Address Numbers: Address numbers shall be installed on every building as 
per adopted Clovis Fire Department Standard #1.8. 

 
13. Fire Lane: The fire lanes shall be posted with signs and/or the curbs shall be 

painted red as per Clovis Fire Department Standard #1.1 and identified on 
site plan. Signs stating parking allowed only in marked spaces.   

14. Provide a copy of the approved stamped site plan from the Planning 
Division. Site Plan shall include all fire department notes to verify compliance 
with requirements. Site plans included with this plan submittal are subject to 
the conditions on the Planning Division approved set.  

 
FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Robert Villalobos, FMFCD Representative – (559) 456-3292) 
 

15. Applicant shall comply with the requirements of the FMFCD.  If the list is 
not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 

 
COUNTY OF FRESNO HEALTH DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
(Kevin Tsuda, Health Department Representative – 600-3271) 
 

16. The Applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno County Health Department 
correspondence.  If the list is not attached, please contact the District for 
the list of requirements. 

 
CLOVIS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Michael Johnston, CUSD Representative- (559) 327-9000 
 

17. The Applicant shall refer to the attached CUSD correspondence.  If the list 
is not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 

 

62



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 18-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A 10-UNIT MULTIPLE-FAMILY CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX FOR 

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1855 AUSTIN AVENUE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Mohamad Annan, 783 N. Marion Avenue, Clovis CA, 93611, has applied for 
Conditional Use Permit CUP2018-04; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this is a request to approve a conditional use permit for a 10-unit multiple-family 
condominium development for property located 1855 Austin Avenue, in the City of Clovis; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public notice was sent out to area residents within 600 feet of said property 
boundaries ten days prior to said hearing; and  

 

WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on October 25, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission has reviewed and considered the staff report and all written 

materials submitted in connection with the request including the conditions attached as Exhibit “A” to this 
resolution and incorporated herein by this reference, and hearing and considering the testimony 
presented during the public hearing; and: 
 

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity and 
character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the applicable 
provisions of this Development Code; 

 
2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific plan; 

 
3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant noise, 
traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other 
allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City; 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 

density/intensity of use being proposed; 
 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities and 
services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health and 
safety; and 

 
6. The project is in substantial conformance with the environmental analysis performed for 

the 2014 General Plan updated, 2014 Development Code updated. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clovis Planning Commission does 
approve CUP2018-04, subject to the attached conditions labeled Exhibit "A." 
            
  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular meeting 
on October 25, 2018, upon a motion by Commissioner _________, seconded by Commissioner 
_________, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   

63



NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 18-___ 
DATED: October 25, 2018 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Paul Hinkle, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Dwight Kroll, AICP, Secretary 
 

64



 

County of Fresno 
 

  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
  David Pomaville, Director 

Dr. Ken Bird, Health Officer 
 

Promotion, preservation and protection of the community’s health 
1221 Fulton Street /P. O. Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775 

(559) 600-3271 ・ FAX (559) 600-7629 
The County of Fresno is an Equal Opportunity Employer 

www.co.fresno.ca.us ・ www.fcdph.org  

 

July 24, 2018       
LU0019562 

                                                                                                                     2604                                        
Lily Cha, Assistant Planner 
City of Clovis 
Planning and Development Services Department                                                              
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA  93612 
 
Dear Ms. Cha: 
 
PROJECT NUMBER: CUP2018-04, SPR2018-12, PM2018-09, R88-09A 
 
CUP2018-04, SPR2018-12, PM2018-09, R88-09A; Proposal to construct a 10-unit 2 story duplex. 

 
APN: 552-330-53                            ZONING: R-2                                 ADDRESS: 1855 Austin Avenue 
 
Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
 The proposed construction project has the potential to expose nearby residents to elevated noise 

levels.  Consideration should be given to your City’s municipal code. 
 

 As a measure to protect ground water, all water wells and/or septic systems that exist or have 
been abandoned within the project area should be properly destroyed by an appropriately licensed 
contractor.  

 
Prior to destruction of agricultural wells, a sample of the upper most fluid in the water 
well column should be sampled for lubricating oil.  The presence of oil staining around 
the water well may indicate the use of lubricating oil to maintain the well pump.  
Should lubricating oil be found in the well, the oil should be removed from the well 
prior to placement of fill material for destruction.  The "oily water" removed from the 
well must be handled in accordance with federal, state and local government 
requirements. 

 
 Should any underground storage tank(s) be found during the project, the applicant shall apply for 

and secure an Underground Storage Tank Removal Permit from the Fresno County Department of 
Public Health, Environmental Health Division.  Contact the Certified Unified Program Agency at  

    (559) 600-3271 for more information.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Lily Cha 
July 24, 2018 
CUP2018-04, SPR2018-12, PM2018-09, R88-09A  
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
REVIEWED BY: 
 
 
 
Kevin Tsuda, R.E.H.S. 
Environmental Health Specialist II       (559) 600-3271 

 
  
KT 
 
cc: Steven Rhodes- Environmental Health Division (CT. 58.02)      
       Mohamad Annan- Applicant (m-annan@outlook.com) 

 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



City Council Meeting 
Sept 10th, 2018 

R88-09A 

(1844 Austin Ave. Clovis, Ca. 93611) 

1 

77



Summary 

Alternant Proposal 

Currently the Developer is proposing a site plan that hasn’t been done in Clovis before  (At 
least as far as I can see).  His plan places (3) 2-story duplexes (6 residential units) within 10’ 
of an R1 property.  These 6 residential units will be able to view the backyards of 2 
northern properties.   His plan dramatically reduces the backyard privacy of the two 
adjacent R1 properties.  His plan will potentially lower the R1 property values because it 
will be harder to find a buyer who wants to live on the R1 property when there is no 
backyard privacy. 
 

I have proposed an alternate site plan to the Developer which allows 9 units to be built on 
his property instead of 10 units.  The alternate plan increases the amount of units which 
can be built on the property with the current height restriction.  The alternate plan allows 
2-story buildings on the southern end of the property, but has single-story units on the 
northern end of the property which protects his northern neighbor’s privacy.  The alternate 
proposal also follows existing R1 to R2 property boundaries that the City of Clovis has 
approved in the past.  (Examples will be provided later in this presentation.) 
 

I do understand that the city councils vote on Sept. 10th is to only remove the height 
restriction on the property at 1844 Austin Ave, and that the Conditional Use Permit CUP 
which allows the 2-story duplexes to be build with a 10’ rear setback, will be the next step 
to be voted on in a month or two.  However each step in the process is a point in time that 
allows me to voice my opinion, and since I cannot support the developers proposal with 
(10) 2-story duplexes,  I humbly request that the City Council will reject the proposal to 
remove the height restriction on the property of 1844 Austin Ave. 

78



Table of Contents 

Item 
Summary of Letter to the Planning Commission 
Additional information since the Planning Commission Meeting on Aug 23rd  
Site Plan evaluation (Developer’s vs. an Alternate Plan) 
Existing R1 to R2 boundaries in the City of Clovis and Neighboring City 
2D layout of the 9 unit alternate plan 
Appendix “A” 
 
 
 

Page 
4 
5 

6-10 
11-17 

18 
19-26 

 
 
 

3 

79



Please do not approve the removal of the height restriction on 
R88-09A until a compromise on the site plan has been reached. 

I wrote a letter to the Planning Commission asking that the height restriction NOT be removed from  the property 
on 1844 Austin Ave.   Below is a summary of the reason why I asked the commission not to approve the request. 
1. I purchased my property at 1848 Richert Ave. last year believing that 2-story buildings would not be built 

directly behind my home. (This was explained on page 1) 
2. The privacy of my backyard will be severely impacted by building (3) 2-story duplexes along the northern 

fence line of 1844 Austin Ave. 
3.  Lower property values will result for my property because not as many people may be willing to buy my 

home without backyard privacy.  
4. I believe that the City of Clovis has a responsibility to preserve the existing Zoning requirements and 

restrictions that were established at the time the current residents who live near 1844 Austin Ave. purchased 
their property 

5. I believe that building 2-story housing units along the north fence of 1844 Austin could negatively impact the 
ability of my property to access direct sunlight during the months from October to February.  

6. If Mr. Annan only builds 2-story residences on the property of 1844 Austin Ave. with only 400 sq. ft. of living 
space on the ground floor, this could defer people with mobility disabilities and other elderly people from 
living on this property, especially if a ground floor bedroom is not provided in the residence and/or a stairway 
lift is not installed so the occupant can access the second story.   

7. The view of the sky line from my backyard will be reduced by about 10 degrees of elevation if two-story vs 
single-story buildings are built along the northern fence line of 1844 Austin Ave, with only a 10 ft rear setback 
to the building. 

8. I have question about the legality of the building rear setback of only 10 ft which is proposed on the 
unapproved site plan of 1844 Austin Ave.   Shouldn’t the rear setback of the building be 20 ft for an R2 
residence per Residential Zoning Districts Chapter 9.10 table 2-3. 
(https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Clovis/html/Clovis09/Clovis0910.html) 

 
4 

80



Additional Information Since the Planning Commission Meeting 

For more information about items 1-7, please see the letter that was sent to the planning 
commission for the Aug 23rd meeting. 
 
In this document I would like to focus a little more on: 
•  The current site plan that the developer is proposing, verses an alternate plan 
•  Item 8 (having a 10ft setback instead of the standard 20 ft rear setback)   
•  Existing R1 – R2 boundaries that have been approved by the City of Clovis in the past 
 
The Planning Commission did recommend that the developer talk to his neighbors on his northern 
property line (which I am one of them) to see if a compromise could be reached between the 
developer and the adjacent neighbors.   Since then I have talked to Mr. Annan 3 times. 

•  After the planning committee meeting (Aug. 23rd) 
•  On the Phone Aug. 29th 
•  In person on Sept 4th  

 
Unfortunately to this date the Developer and I have not been able to come to a compromise.  I 
continue to ask for a single story building along the northern property boundary to protect my 
families privacy.  The Developer prefer his original plan which is more financially profitable. 

5 

81



Developers Proposal verse an Alternate Compromise Proposal 

Personally I believe that my alternate proposal of (9) residential units on the property ((3) 2-story 
duplexes on the south end of his property and (1) single-story triplex on the northern end would be a 
good compromise.) 
It does the following: 

•  Still provides a good amount of revenue for Mr. Annan  
•  Improves my backyard privacy greatly and removes the 8 concerns listed on the previous 
page 
•  Allows the developer’s building complex to appeal to a greater range of people with mobility 
issues by having single story buildings on the property. 

 
In the following pages I would like to show you what the developer is proposing to build, verse the 
construction of the alternate proposal.  I would also like to review what similar R2 to R1 properties 
have done when a 10’ rear setback is requested over the standard 20’ rear setback. 
 

6 

82



Below you can see three possible site plans.  #1 is a single story option if the zoning 
height restriction was not remove.  #2 shows the developers plan with (5) 2-story 

duplexes.  #3 shows a compromise which matches existing property line interfaces in 
the City of Clovis between R1 and R2 properties when a 10’ rear setback is present 

Current Zoning – with 
height restriction 

(~7 units) 

Developer’s Proposal 
(10 units) 

My Compromise Proposal 
(9 units) 

Current 
Zoning 

Developer’s 
Proposal 

Compromis
e 

1-story duplex 2 -- -- 

2-story duplex -- 5 3 

1-story triplex 1 -- 1 

Total units 7 10 9 

#1 #2 

#3 

7 

83



Developers vs. Alternant Proposal 

Developer’s Proposal Alternant Proposal 

Plan View of proposals 

8 

84



Developer’s Proposal vs Alternant 

Alternant Proposal 

Developer’s Proposal 

View of how the two proposals affect the skyline and backyard privacy 

9 

85



Developer’s Proposal vs Alternant 

Alternant Proposal 

Developer’s Proposal 

The developer’s proposal 
drastically reduces the 
backyard privacy for the 
neighbors who share his 
northern fence line. 
 
Also I can’t find another R2 
development that backs up to 
a R1 property, that has a 2-
story building with a 10 ft 
rear setback. 

Single story building(s) along 
1844 Austin Ave northern 
fence line will protect privacy 
of it’s adjoining neighbors 
 
Also this configuration will 
match existing R2-R1 zoning 
borders, such as “Dartmouth 
Towers” at Shaw and 
Dartmouth. 

10 

86



Existing Example of R1 to R2 Property 
Boundary Interfaces 

I was only able to find two property examples in Clovis that had an R2 property 
boundary which appears to have a 10’ setback to an R1 property boundary. 

•  Dartmouth and Shaw (Dartmouth Towers) 

•  Temperance and Bullard (Sunny Hills Apartments) 

 

I’ve also added another example from another town I grew up in.  The towns name 
is Kerman (~15 miles west of Fresno) 

•  Kearney and Siskiyou (Pebble Brook Village Apartments) 

11 

87



Dartmouth and Shaw 
The property has single story building along the R1-R2 boundary when the 
buildings have a 10’ rear setback.  Then in the middle of the complex and 

along the northern street there are 2-story buildings 

Single story R2 

Single story R2 

2-story R2 

12 

88



Dartmouth and Shaw 
Here is another view of the property 

The alternate proposal matches existing boundary lines between R1 and R2 properties 
that the City of Clovis have approved in the past. 

 

 

13 

89



Temperance and Bullard 
SunnyHills Apartments 

(R2 – 2-story Under construction) 
See next page for more information  

Alternant Proposal 

Dev. Proposal 

14 

90



Temperance and Bullard 
SunnyHills Apartments 

(R2 – 2-story Under construction) 
 

Alternant Proposal 

Dev. Proposal 

View from side street 
There is one apartment that 
is adjacent to an R1 
properties side yard.  
Although I’m not 100% sure I 
believe the apartment in this 
location is single-story and 
the attic venting is showing in 
the picture (not a window) 

The privacy of the R1 
Neighbor is protected. 

15 

91



Kearney and Siskiyou (Kerman) 
Pebble Brook Village Apartments 

Pebble Brook is a mixture of one and two story apartments in Kerman Ca. They 
have 2-story apartments along the main streets, and single-story apartments 

along the zoning boundary between the R2 and R1 properties. 

 

16 

92



These are Other R2 Properties that I Reviewed 

Dartmouth and Shaw 
(R1-R2 with 10ft setback) 

Teague and Minnewawa 
(R2 subdivision) 

Fowler and Alluvial 
(R2 apartments with standard setbacks) 

Fowler and Alluvial 
(R2 to RA single story at western boundary) 

Willow and Alluvial 
(R2 apartments) 

Temperance and Bullard 
(R2 2-story, under construction) 

Fowler and Shaw 
(R2 Undeveloped) 

Gettysburg and Willow 
(R2 with standard setbacks 
 parking adjacent to R1 property) 

Google Maps views of 
these properties are in 
Appendix “A” 

17 

93



Please Consider an Alternant Proposal 
similar to this one. 

18 

94



Appendix “A” 

Google maps views of different R2 properties 

•   Teague and Minnewawa 

•   Fowler and Alluvial (Property 1) 

•   Fowler and Alluvial (Property 2) 

•   Willow and Alluvial 

•   Fowler and Shaw 

•   Willow and Gettysburg 

 
19 

95



Teague and Minnewawa 
(R2 subdivision) 

20 
Appendix “A” 

96



Fowler and Alluvial 
(R2 s-story apartments with 

standard setbacks) 

21 
Appendix “A” 

97



Fowler and Alluvial 
(R2 to RA boundary with single story on 

western border) 

1-story R2 

22 
Appendix “A” 

98



Willow and Alluvial 
(R2 - Single-Story Apartments) 

23 
Appendix “A” 

99



Fowler and Shaw 
(R2 – developed with single story apartments) 

See next page for more information 

24 
Appendix “A” 

100



Fowler and Shaw 
(R2 – developed with single story apartments) 

The Apartment Complex’s name part of “Carmel Village at Clovis” 

View from west side of property 

There is a street between the apartments and the R1 
neighbors to the south 

25 
Appendix “A” 

101



Willow and Gettysburg 
(R2 with standard setbacks) 

Parking is adjacent to R1 properties 

Appendix “A” 
26 

102



1

Orlando Ramirez

To: Marrisa Pena

Subject: RE: 1844 Austin Way Proposal

From: Marrisa Pena [mailto:marrisa@yourmissionagent.com]  

Sent: Monday, September 10, 2018 3:01 PM 

To: Orlando Ramirez <OrlandoR@ci.clovis.ca.us>; Ruben Villegas <ruben@yourmissionagent.com> 

Subject: 1844 Austin Way Proposal 

 

Mr. Ramirez 

 

Hello I am the owner of the property located directly behind the planned development at 1844 Austin 

Way Clovis CA 93611. 

 

My back yard faces the lot for the the proposed construction, Kevin and Lisa are my neighbors and 

their property as well as mine will receive 

the most negative impact from this build. 

 

I am a REALTOR in Clovis CA and know first hand the huge negative impact Mr. Annan's current 

plan proposal will have on my property. 

 

Not only will my homes current value and future value decrease substantially it will also affect me in 

the future if I do decide to relocate or 

downsize. 

 

I have no plans to move, I purchase my home over 6 years ago and the main reason I fell in love with 

my home is because of the large outdoor living space. 

 

I love the privacy I have when I walk out of 1 of my sliding glass doors and  the lack of noise and 

traffic  allow me to truly enjoy the home I have built, love, raised 

my 2 oldest daughters in and continue to raise my 2 younger sons in. 

 

To think of having 6 apartment units directly in back of me is something that I never ever thought 

would be a possibility, it scared me to imaging having to  walk into my   

backyard and have multiple sets of strange eyes encroaching on  my privacy but as well as my families 

safety and well being. 

 

I will never feel comfortable walking out of my bedroom and taking a dip in my pool or reading a book 

under my pergola or even back porch knowing that my privacy 

that I value more than anything has the possibility of being non existent if the height restriction is 

passed by the City of Clovis. 

 

You can ask anyone if they would be comfortable with having to live like that and the answer would 

be  no.  I am a Clovis resident, Homeowner and Business owner and I would 

103



2

hope the City of Clovis would take into consideration our neighborhoods charm, family atmosphere 

and safety before the earnings of an investor that is not even a resident of our  

Gettysburg Park Community. 

 

 

Thank you in advance 

Marrisa Pena 

1852 Richert Ave  

Clovis CA 93611 

559-260-6986  

--  

  

Marrisa A. Pena 

Mission Mortgage & Realty of Central Valley 

2700 Clovis Ave Suite 108 

Clovis CA 93612 

 

559-260-6986-Cell 
559-291-SELL-Office 

877-561-3777-Fax 

 

BRE#01777687/01910540 

NMLS#329987-925515 

 

www.missionmortgageandrealty,com 
 

 

 

  

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 1 of 11 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-09, a request to approve 
a conditional use permit for a new tire sales and service facility 
located on a portion of a 12.9 acre property located at the northeast 
corner of Herndon and Helm Avenues. Peter Klein Trustee, Owners; 
America’s Tire, Halle Properties, applicant; Sol Development, 
representative. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

 
Figure 1: Location Map 
Exhibit “A:” Conditions of Approval 
Attachment 1: Draft Resolution 
Attachment 2: Correspondence from Agencies 
Exhibit “B:” Site Plan 
Exhibit “B-1:” Conceptual Site Plan of Center 
Exhibit “C:” Floor Plan & Elevations 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve conditional use permit 
CUP2018-09, subject to the conditions listed in Exhibit “A.” 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant, is requesting approval of a conditional use permit to allow for the 
development of a tire sales and service facility on a portion of a 12.9 acre property located 
at the northeast corner of Herndon and Helm Avenues. Approval of this conditional use 
permit will allow the applicant to move forward with site plan review.  
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 

  

129



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 2 of 11 

BACKGROUND 
 

 General Plan Designation: General Commercial 
 

 Specific Plan Designation: Herndon-Shepherd  
 

 Existing Zoning: C-2 (Community Commercial) 
 

 Lot Size:  12.9 acre 
 

 Current Land Use: Vacant 
 

 Adjacent Land Uses: North: R-2 (Medium High Density 
Residential) 

  South:  C-P (Professional Office) 
R-1-AH (Single-Family Residential 
18,000 sq. ft.) 

  East:  C-2 (Community Commercial)  
  West:  C-2 (Community Commercial) 

 

 Previous Entitlements: GPA84-03A R2001-08, SPR2009-10 
 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
 
Project Description and Operation 
 
The applicant is requesting approval for the development of a tire sales and service facility 
on a portion of a vacant 12.9 acre parcel located at the northeast corner of Herndon and 
Helm Avenues. The lease area for this project is approximately one acre located at the 
southeast corner of the subject parcel. The proposed facility is approximately 8,192 square 
feet in area with an overall height of 26 feet.   The majority of the parcel will remain 
undeveloped excepting the Project and required access and circulation; however, the 
applicant has provided a conceptual site plan indicating how future development could 
connect with future commercial development (Exhibit B-1) of the entire parcel.  The 
property is zoned C-2 (Community Commercial) which requires a conditional use permit for 
tire facilities. 
 
The proposed building is oriented with the public entrance and service bays facing the west 
elevation as shown on Exhibit C in order to reduce direct view of the bays from Herndon 
Avenue.  Hours of operation are Monday through Friday from 8:00 am to 6:00 pm, and 
Saturday from 8:00 pm to 5:00 pm.   
 
 
 
 

130



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 3 of 11 

 
Consistency with General Plan and Zoning 
 
The project site has a general plan designation of General Commercial, is zoned C-2 
(Community Commercial), and is within the Herndon-Shepherd Specific Plan. The project is 
consistent with the General Plan, Herndon Shepherd Specific Plan and the C-2 Zone 
District.  
 
Site Characteristics 
 
The Project site is currently vacant and is bounded by vacant parcels on the north and east.  
To the west of the project site across N. Helm Avenue is the Clovis Commons Shopping 
Center that includes anchor stores such as Target, Best Buy, and Pet Smart. The Institute 
of Technology is located south of the project site across Herndon Avenue. The tire center is 
proposed at the southeast area of the subject parcel and will provide access to and from 
the site from both N. Helm and W. Spruce Avenues.  
 
The project fronts Herndon Avenue which is designated as an Arterial Street within the 
Circulation Element of the General Plan with the capacity to accommodate traffic generated 
by the proposed use.   
 
Setbacks 
 
The Clovis Commercial Design Standards require a 40-foot setback from the face-of-curb 
to the structure, and 30-foot setback from the face-of-curb to parking along the Herndon 
Avenue frontage.  A 20-foot landscape setback is required adjacent to north property line 
along with a 30-foot wide drive lane.  The applicant’s proposal is consistent with these 
requirements. 
 
The proposed development will utilize approximately one acre of land within the larger 
vacant parcel.  The southern boundary of the Project is adjacent to Herndon Avenue and 
will be required to install sidewalk improvements along its leased area of Herndon Avenue.  
Additionally, the applicant will be required to install access improvements along the Helm 
and Spruce Avenue street frontages.  
 
Parking and Circulation 
 
Parking will be provided per the City Standards, at a ratio of 5.0 parking stalls per 1,000 
square feet of gross floor area for commercial and service uses. The proposed building is 
approximately 8,192 square feet, requiring a total of 41 parking stalls for the project site. A 
total of 43 parking stalls will be provided with this project, meeting the parking requirement. 
 
The project site will be accessible from N. Helm Avenue to the west and W. Spruce Avenue 
to the north via reciprocal driveways. This phase of development will provide 30 foot wide 
driveways from both access points through the parcel to the project site.  Proposed 

131



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 4 of 11 

driveways for this project are highlighted in grey shown on Exhibit B-1. The reciprocal 
driveways will provide efficient circulation for city services as well as private delivery 
vehicles.  
Previous site plan approval (SPR2009-10A2), included recommendations for pedestrian 
and vehicular reciprocal access throughout the development when completed.  Specific 
reciprocal access will be reviewed through the site plan review process as development 
occurs on the overall site, further defining a comprehensive access plan. 
 
Signs 
 
The project site will be a part of a larger commercial center and therefore is not permitted 
an individual freestanding sign. With future center development, the site will be allowed a 
multi-tenant freestanding sign per the City’s Sign Ordinance.  
 
Public Comments 

 
A public notice was sent to area residents within 500 feet of the property boundaries.  
Staff has not received comments or concerns from the public upon finalization of this 
report. 
 
Review and Comments from Agencies 

 
The Project was distributed to all City Divisions as well as outside agencies, including 
Cal Trans, Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan 
Flood Control District, AT&T, PG&E, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, 
State Department of Fish and Game, and the County of Fresno.  Comments received 
are attached only if the agency has provided concerns, conditions, or mitigation 
measures.  Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the administrative 
record and provided to the applicant for their records 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
The project is in substantial conformance with the environmental impact report 
performed for the General Plan.  No major revisions will be required with the adopted 
Environmental Impact Report to accommodate the proposed project, therefore, subject 
to CEQA Sections 15162 and 15182 no further environmental review is required for this 
project. A Notice of Exemption has been completed during the preliminary review, and is 
kept for public review with the project file during the processing of the project application.  
Staff will file the notice with the County Clerk if the project is approved. 
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, 
October 10, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 

132



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 5 of 11 

None. 
 
 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed conditional use permit is consistent with the goals and policies of the 
General Plan, Herndon-Shepherd Specific Plan and Zoning.  The project is development 
that is consistent with adjacent uses.  Staff therefore recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve CUP2018-09, subject to the conditions of approval attached as 
Exhibit “A.” 
 
Findings for approval of a conditional use permit application are as follows: 

 
1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the 

integrity and character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance 
with all of the applicable provisions of this Development Code; 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable 
specific plan; 

3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use are compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not 
create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be 
objectionable or detrimental to other allowed uses operating nearby or 
adverse to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or welfare of the 
City; 

4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 
density/intensity of use being proposed; 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and 
public utilities and services to ensure that the proposed use would not be 
detrimental to public health and safety; and 

6. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no 
potential significant negative effects upon environmental quality and natural 
resources that would not be properly mitigated and monitored, unless 
findings are made in compliance with CEQA. (§ 2, Ord. 14-13, eff. October 
8, 2014) 

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
None 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
 Property owners within 500 feet notified: 25 
 Interested individuals notified:  11 

133



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 6 of 11 

 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Orlando Ramirez, Deputy City Planner 
 
 

 
  

134



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 7 of 11 

FIGURE 1 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

  

135



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 8 of 11 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Conditions of Approval – CUP2018-09 

 
PLANNING DIVISION COMMENTS 

Orlando Ramirez – Division representative – 559-324-2345 
 

1. All conditions of this use permit shall be addressed prior to operation of the 
facility. 
 

2. The applicant shall submit and comply with the requirements of the site plan 
review process. 

 
3. This project, CUP2018-09 is approved per Exhibit B.   

 
4. CUP2018-09 may be reviewed in a one year period of time.  Staff will conduct a 

review of the use in regard to the compliance with conditions of approval and 
present findings of this review to the Planning Commission.  

 
5. All parking of employees shall occur on site. 
 
6. Succession or abandonment of this use for a period of exceeding 90 days shall 

be cause for scheduling of a revocation hearing for this conditional use permit. 
 
7. Thirty-feet of setback for parking and forty-feet of setback to any building shall be 

provided along the Herndon Avenue frontage.   
 
8. All lighting shall be screened from direct view from the public right-of-way and 

adjacent residential properties. 
 

9. Operation of the site shall conform to the Clovis noise and vibration standards 
(CMC §9.22.080 and §9.22.100).  

 
10. Conditional Use Permit CUP2018-09 approves a new tire sales and installation 

use and activities shall be limited to service of brakes, shocks and struts, light 
suspension work, minor tune-ups, lube and oil changes and transmission service.   

 
11. Vehicles shall not be stored or parked outside the building overnight.  All storage 

of materials shall occur within the building. 
 

12. Overnight camping and/or overnight RV parking is not permitted on this site. 
 
13. The developer shall install sidewalk along Herndon Avenue to match adjacent 

existing development. 
 

136



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 9 of 11 

14. The developer shall provide reciprocal access to all properties surrounding the 
development. 

 
15. The sale of vehicles is not approved for this site. 

 
16. All signs shall be consistent with the City’s sign ordinance and are subject to a 

separate sign review and permit. 
 

17. The site is not permitted an individual freestanding sign.  
 

18. No outdoor display of merchandise is permitted unless approved through a 
separate Administrative Use Permit. 
 

19. Windows signs shall not exceed more than 20% of the glass surface area and/ or 
allowed by code. Section 9-4.202 

 
CLOVIS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Michael Johnston, CUSD Representative – 559-327-9000) 
 
20. The development of this project is subject to the Clovis Unified School District 

impact fee.  See the attached letter. 
 

CLOVIS FIRE DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
(Gary Sawhill, Fire Representative – 324-2224) 

 
Roads / Access 
 
21. Turning Radius: All access way roads constructed shall be designed with a 

minimum outside turning radius of forty-five feet (45’) 
 
22. All Weather Access &Water Supply: The applicant shall provide all weather 

access to the site during all phases of construction to the satisfaction of the 
approved Clovis Fire Department Standard #1.2 or #1.3. 

 
23. Fire Lane: The fire lanes shall be posted with signs and/or the curbs shall be 

painted red as per Clovis Fire Department Standard #1.1 and identified on site 
plan. 

 
24. The proposed Phase 1 pavement of the common drive aisles shall be marked as 

a Fire Lane per Fire Department Standard #1.1 and shown on site plan 
 
25. Fire Access – Landscape Obstruction: Landscaping trees or shrubs located 

adjacent to the fire access drives shall be of the type that will not impede fire 
access due to their growth process. 

 

137



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 10 of 11 

Water Systems 
 
26. Commercial Fire Hydrant: The applicant shall install one (1), 4 ½” x 4 ½” x 2 ½” 

approved Commercial Type hydrant(s) and “Blue Dot” hydrant locators, paint fire 
hydrant(s) yellow with blue top and caps, and paint the curb red as specified by 
the adopted Clovis Fire Department Standard #1.4. Plans shall be submitted to 
the Clovis Fire Department for review and approval prior to installation. The 
hydrant(s) shall be charged and in operation prior to any framing or combustible 
material being brought onto the site. 

  
27. Looped Water Main: The applicant shall install approved looped water main 

capable of the necessary flow of water for adequate fire protection and approved 
by the Clovis Fire Department 

 
28.  Vehicle Impact Protection: The applicant must install protection posts that meet 

the City of Clovis specifications according to Clovis Fire Department Standard 
#1.7. 

 
Systems Fire Protection 
 
29. Fire Sprinkler – 2,500 Square Feet: The applicant shall install an automatic fire 

sprinkler system in buildings exceeding 2,500 square feet in gross floor area, as 
per NFPA 13. Consideration should be given to the fire service water supply for 
size and fire sprinkler design for the intended Occupancy use. This will insure 
proper fire protection for uses such as high piled storage or high hazard 
Occupancies. 

 
30. Underground Fire Service Line Installation: Installation shall be per Clovis Fire 

Standard #2.1. 
 
31. Prior to installation, the applicant shall submit fire sprinkler underground water 

supply plans for review and approval and issuance of a permit by the Clovis Fire 
Department. Prior to final acceptance, the underground fire service line shall be 
inspected, pressure tested and flushed in the presence of a Clovis Fire 
Department inspector. A permit is required to be on-site for all inspections 
requests. NOTE – When a fire pump is required by the overhead system demand, 
the FDC shall be connected on the discharge side of the fire pump. 

 
32. FDC Location: The Fire Department Connection to the automatic fire sprinkler 

system shall be shown on the site utility plan. Installation shall be per Clovis Fire 
Standard #2.1. 

33. This will be reviewed and approved by the Clovis Fire Department before 
installation. 

 
34. Monitored Sprinklers: All valves controlling the water supply for automatic 

138



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-09 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-09 10/19/2018 5:26:17 PM Page 11 of 11 

sprinkler systems and water flow switches on all sprinkler systems shall be 
electronically monitored for integrity. 

 
35. Fire Department Comments on Plans: All Fire Department comments shall be 

on approved plans. 
 

 
FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT CONDITIONS 

(Michael Maxwell, FMFCD Representative - 456-3292) 
 
36. The Applicant shall refer to the attached FMFCD requirements.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT CONDITIONS 
(Laurence Kimura, FID Representative - 233-7161) 

 
37. The Applicant shall refer to the attached FID correspondence.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

FRESNO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
(Kevin Tsuda, Health Dept. Representative - 600- 3271) 

 
38. The Applicant shall refer to the attached Health Department correspondence.  If 

the list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements 
 

139



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 18-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A NEW TIRE SALES AND SERVICE FACILITY LOCATED ON A 
PORITON OF A 12.9 ACRE PROPOERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF HERNDON 

AND HELM AVENUES 
 

 WHEREAS, America’s Tire, Halle Properties, 20225 N. Scottsdale Road, has applied for a 
Conditional Use Permit CUP2018-09; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this is a request to approve a conditional use permit for a new tire sales and service 
facility located on a portion of a 12.9 acre property located at the northeast corner of Herndon and Helm 
Avenues in the City of Clovis, County of Fresno; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public notice was sent out to area residents within 500 feet of said property 
boundaries ten days prior to said hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on October 25, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission, has reviewed and considered the staff report and all written 

materials submitted in connection with the request including the conditions attached as Exhibit “A” to this 
resolution and incorporated herein by this reference, and hearing and considering the testimony 
presented during the public hearing; and: 
 

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity and 
character of the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the applicable 
provisions of this Development Code; 

 
2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific plan; 

 
3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant noise, 
traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other 
allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City; 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and density/ 

intensity of use being proposed; 
 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities and 
services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health and 
safety; and 

 
6.  The project is in substantial conformance with the environmental impact report performed 

for the General Plan.  No major revisions will be required with the adopted Environmental 
Impact Report to accommodate the proposed project, therefore, subject to CEQA 
Sections 15162 and 15182 no further environmental review is required for this project. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clovis Planning Commission does 
approve CUP2018-09, subject to the attached conditions labeled Exhibit "A” 
            
  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

140



 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular meeting 
on September October 25, 2018, upon a motion by Commissioner _________, seconded by 
Commissioner _________, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 18-____ 
DATED: October 25, 2018 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Paul Hinkle, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Dwight Kroll, AICP, Secretary 
 

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



 

County of Fresno 
 

  DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
  David Pomaville, Director 

Dr. Ken Bird, Health Officer 
 

Promotion, preservation and protection of the community’s health 
1221 Fulton Mall /P. O. Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775 

(559) 600-3271 ・ FAX (559) 600-7629 
The County of Fresno is an Equal Opportunity Employer 

www.co.fresno.ca.us ・ www.fcdph.org  

 

July 12, 2018       
LU0019546 

                                                                                                                     2604                                       
Joyce Roach, Planning Intern 
City of Clovis 
Planning and Development Services Department                                                              
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA  93612 
 
Dear Ms. Roach: 

 
PROJECT NUMBER: DRC2018-38 
 
DRC2018-38, Construction of a ±8,250sf America's Tire store as Phase I of development of the parcel. 
 
APN: 561-260-12                    ZONING:                  ADDRESS: NEC E Herndon & N Helm Avenues  

 
Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
 If the applicant proposes to use and/or store hazardous materials and/or hazardous wastes, they 

shall meet the requirements set forth in the California Health and Safety Code (HSC), Division 20, 
Chapter 6.95, and the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22, Division 4.5.  Any business that 
handles a hazardous material or hazardous waste may be required to submit a Hazardous Materials 
Business Plan pursuant to the California Health and Safety Code (HSC), Division 20, Chapter 6.95, 
Section 25507 (https://www.fresnocupa.com/ or http://cers.calepa.ca.gov/).  Contact the Certified 
Unified Program Agency at (559) 600-3271 for more information. 

 
 The applicant should be advised of the State of California Public Resources Code, Division 30; Waste 

Management, Chapter 16; Waste Tire Facilities and Chapter 19; Waste Tire Haulers and facilities, will 
require the Owners/Operators to obtain a Tire Program Identification Number (TPID) and possibly a 
waste and used tire hauler permit from the California Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery (CalRecycle). Contact the local Tire Enforcement Agency at (559) 600-3271 for additional 
information. 

 
 The proposed construction and retail/commercial project have the potential to expose nearby residents 

to elevated noise levels.  Consideration should be given to your City’s municipal code. 
 

 As a measure to protect ground water, all water wells and/or septic systems that exist or have been 
abandoned within the project area should be properly destroyed by an appropriately licensed 
contractor.  

 
Prior to destruction of agricultural wells, a sample of the upper most fluid in the water well 
column should be sampled for lubricating oil.  The presence of oil staining around the 
water well may indicate the use of lubricating oil to maintain the well pump.  Should 

151



Joyce Roach 
July 12, 2018 
DRC2018-38 
Page 2 of 2 

 
lubricating oil be found in the well, the oil should be removed from the well prior to 
placement of fill material for destruction.  The "oily water" removed from the well must be 
handled in accordance with federal, state and local government requirements. 

 
 Should any underground storage tank(s) be found during the project, the applicant shall apply for and 

secure an Underground Storage Tank Removal Permit from the Fresno County Department of Public 
Health, Environmental Health Division.  Contact the Certified Unified Program Agency at  
(559) 600-3271 for more information.  

 
REVIEWED BY: 
 
 
 
Kevin Tsuda, R.E.H.S. 
Environmental Health Specialist II       (559) 600-3271 

 
                                                             
KT 
 
cc:      Damean Jackson- Environmental Health Division (CT. 55.25)      
  Bill Robinson- Applicant (bill@soldevelopment.com) 

 

152



KEYNOTES

153



K
E

Y
N

O
T

E
S

EXHIBIT B-1

154



EXHIBIT C

155



C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 
1

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 
M

E
Z

Z
.
 
F

L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 
F

L
O

O
R

 
P

L
A

N
S

A
.
1

N
E

C
 
H

e
r
n

d
o

n
 
A

v
e

.
 
&

 
H

e
l
m

 
A

v
e

.

C
L

O
V

I
S

,
 
C

A
 
9

3
6

1
2

T
H

I
S

 
P

L
A

N
 
I
S

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F
 
E

I
 
D

E
S

I
G

N
.
 
T

H
I
S

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
I
S

L
O

A
N

E
D

 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
O

T
H

E
R

 
C

O
N

S
I
D

E
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
T

H
A

N
 
T

H
E

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 
A

N
D

 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
 
T

H
A

T
 
I
T

 
I
S

 
N

O
T

 
B

E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

,
 
C

O
P

I
E

D
,
 
O

R
 
O

T
H

E
R

W
I
S

E
 
D

I
S

P
O

S
E

D
 
O

F
,

D
I
R

E
C

T
L

Y
 
O

R
 
I
N

D
I
R

E
C

T
L

Y
,
 
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
N

O
T

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
U

S
E

D
 
I
N

W
H

O
L
E

 
O

R
 
I
N

 
P

A
R

T
 
T

O
 
A

S
S

I
S

T
 
I
N

 
M

A
K

I
N

G
 
O

R
 
T

O
 
F

U
R

N
I
S

H

A
N

Y
 
I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

I
O

N
 
F

O
R

 
T

H
E

 
M

A
K

I
N

G
 
O

F
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

,

P
R

I
N

T
S

,
 
A

P
P

A
R

A
T

U
S

 
O

R
 
P

A
R

T
S

 
T

H
E

R
E

O
F

.
 
T

H
E

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
N

C
E

 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
W

I
L
L

 
B

E
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

E
D

 
A

S

A
N

 
A

C
C

E
P

T
A

N
C

E
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
F

O
R

E
G

O
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

.

Sh
ee

t N
o.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

D
A

TE

SC
A

LE

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

UM
BE

R

A
S 

N
O

TE
D

06
.2

8.
18

20
18

06
02

46

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 M

O
D

EL

A
LT

 - 
1R

Ei
 D

es
ig

n 
In

c.
12

60
 C

or
on

a 
Po

in
te

,
Su

ite
 3

01
C

or
on

a,
 C

A
  9

28
79

95
1-

44
4-

56
42

 (T
)

ei
d

es
ig

ni
nc

.c
om

#
1 

- 0
7.

23
.1

8

 
 
O

F
F

I
C

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

1
5

.
3

0
 
S

.
F

.
 

'
M

'
 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

:

S
A

L
E

S
 
/
 
D

I
S

P
L

A
Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

,
2

7
8

.
9

6
 
S

.
F

.
 

'
S

-
1

'
 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

:

 
M

E
Z

Z
A

N
I
N

E
 
L

E
V

E
L

 
A

R
E

A
:

 
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 
#

 
1

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

2
0

.
1

4
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 
#

 
2

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

3
1

.
3

2
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

 
#

 
3

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

1
9

.
2

7
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
J
A

N
I
T

O
R

 
R

O
O

M
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

5
.
4

0
 
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
W

O
M

E
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

9
.
1

2
 
 
S

.
F

.

 
 
M

E
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

5
.
8

6
 
 
S

.
F

.
 

'
S

-
1

'
 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

,
7

5
0

.
2

1
 
S

.
F

.
 
(
N

E
T

 
A

R
E

A
 
/
 
U

S
A

B
L

E
)
 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
F

L
O

O
R

 
A

R
E

A

 
 
C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
.
6

8
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
H

A
L

L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

2
.
6

8
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

1
2

8
.
1

0
 
S

.
F

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

C
Y

C
L

E
 
T

I
R

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

7
4

.
6

7
 
 
S

.
F

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
I
R

E
 
R

I
S

E
R

 
R

O
O

M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

8
.
0

0
 
S

.
F

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

,
7

2
0

.
7

8
 
S

.
F

.
 
(
N

E
T

 
A

R
E

A
 
/
 
U

S
A

B
L

E
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
O

T
A

L
 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

 
A

R
E

A
:
 
 
8

,
1

9
2

 
S

.
F

.
 
(
B

L
D

G
 
F

O
O

T
P

R
I
N

T
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
W

A
L

K
I
N

G
 
G

R
A

T
E

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

3
7

9
.
4

8
 
S

.
F

.
 

 
E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

9
.
1

2
 
 
S

.
F

.

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

O
R

 
R

O
O

M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

3
6

.
8

9
 
S

.
F

.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
 
D

A
T

A

B
u

i
l
d

i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a
 
B

r
e

a
k
d

o
w

n

T
Y

P
E

 
O

F
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
:
 
 
 
 
 
I
I
-
B

 
(
F

u
l
l
y
 
S

p
r
i
n
k
l
e
r
e
d
)

O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 
G

R
O

U
P

:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M

-
R

e
t
a
i
l
 
/
 
S

-
1
 
(
S

e
r
v
i
c
e
 
&

 
S

t
o
r
a
g
e
)

S
P

R
I
N

K
L
E

R
 
T

Y
P

E
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E

S
F

R
 
S

p
r
i
n
k
l
e
r
 
S

y
s
t
e
m

 
(
W

e
t
)

156



 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 1 of 10 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: October 15, 2018 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, Res. 18-___, CUP2018-10, A request to approve 
a conditional use permit for a bar with ancillary micro brewing at 2700 
Clovis Avenue, suites 103 and 104. Rodney and Dana Heinrich, 
owners; Ish Brewing Company, LLC., applicant. 

ATTACHMENTS: Figure 1:Location Map 

 Exhibit “A:” Conditions of Approval 

 Attachment 1: Draft Resolution 

 Attachment 2: Correspondence from Resident 

 Attachment 3: Correspondence from Agencies 

 Exhibit “B:” Site Plan 

 Exhibit “C:” Floor Plan 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 

  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve conditional use permit 
CUP2018-10, subject to the conditions listed in Exhibit “A.” 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant, Ish Brewing Company, LLC. is requesting to operate a bar also known as a 
tap house at 2700 Clovis Avenue, within the commercial center located at the northwest 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 

  

157



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 2 of 10 

corner of Pico and Clovis Avenues. Additionally, the applicant is requesting the ancillary 
operation of a microbrewery for the manufacturing of the product to be sold for 
consumption on-site. Approval of this conditional use permit will allow the applicant to 
move forward with interior tenant improvements and application submittals for the required 
Alcohol and Beverage Control licensing. This project was scheduled for the September 27, 
2018 Planning Commission meeting and was continued to October 25, 2018 to give the 
applicant time to address concerns from Clovis Unified School District.  
 
BACKGROUND 

 

 General Plan Designation: Neighborhood Commercial 
 

 Specific Plan Designation: None 
 

 Existing Zoning: C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 
 

 Lot Size:  2.3 acres 
 

 Current Land Use: Neighborhood Commercial Center 
 

 Adjacent Land Uses:  
  North: C-P (Professional Office) 

  South: C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 
  East: P-C-C (Planned Commercial Center) 
  West: R-1 (Single-Family residential) 

 

 Previous Entitlements: CUP90-02, PM99-06, V91-07, V90-01, SPR91-
82A2 

 
PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
 
Project Description and Operations 
 
The applicant is requesting to operate a tap house with an ancillary microbrewery. The 
microbrewery will produce all of the craft beers to be sold for consumption on-site. No 
outside alcoholic beverages will be sold on the premises. There will also be a limited 
amount of product to be manufactured that will be sold by kegs to local restaurants and 
bars. Minor marketing merchandise such as shirts, glasses, etc. will also be sold on site.  
 
Entertainment will be provided to create an atmosphere that is typical of the bar 
environment. Such activities include televisions, recorded music, and small games (non-
arcade). The applicant is also hoping to partner with local restaurants to provide food 
deliveries to the site for customers. Occasionally, there will be special events hosted to 
coincide with events such as the Clovis Rodeo, Big Hat Days, etc.   
 

158



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 3 of 10 

The applicant is proposing initial business hours, open to the public, from Thursday to 
Sunday. Hours of operation would be from 4pm to 10pm on Thursday and Friday and from 
12pm to 10pm on Saturday and Sunday. Operational days and hours are intended to 
expand as the business grow. Bars must adhere to state requirements in terms of 
operational hours, therefore staff is not restricting hours of operations for the use.  
 
Consistency with the General Plan and Zoning 
 
The property has a General Plan designation of neighborhood commercial and is zoned C-
1 (Neighborhood Commercial). The C-1 Zone District allows for bars and alcoholic drinking 
places subject to conditional use permit approval. Bars and alcoholic beverage drinking 
places are defined as “A structure or tenant space within a structure where alcoholic 
beverage are sold for on-site consumption that are not part of a larger restaurant. Includes 
bars, pubs, taverns, similar establishments where any food service is subordinate to the 
sale of alcoholic beverages. May include entertainment (e.g., live music and/or dancing), 
and beer brewing as part of a „brewpub.‟” The proposed tap house with ancillary 
microbrewery is consistent with the respective General Plan and Zoning of the property.  
 
Consistency with Surrounding Area 
 
The project is located within the existing commercial center located at the northwest corner 
of Pico and Clovis Avenues. Businesses within the center include Valley Rod & Gun, 
Sherwin-Williams Paints, and Grill Masters. The center is surrounded by commercial type 
properties to the north, south and east. Property to the north of the shopping center is 
currently vacant and has a zoning designation of C-P (Professional Office). To the south, 
across Pico Avenue is additional commercial property including Fresno Oxygen Welding 
and Supply. The Clovis Rail Trail and the Homewood Suites hotel are located across Clovis 
Avenue, east of the center. The Sierra Vista Mall is located less than a mile north of the 
center.  Directly west of the center is the Rancho Estates single-family residential 
subdivision. 
 
Potential Noise 
 
The operation has the potential to generate an elevated noise level typical of bar uses. 
However, the orientation of the building, interior layout, and existing wall between the 
residential properties and the commercial center will assist in mitigating potential noise 
levels. The building is oriented with the front facing the parking lot and Clovis Avenue. The 
distance between the rear of the building and the shared block wall along the rear property 
line is approximately 15 feet. The masonry block wall separates the commercial center from 
the residential properties. The proposed interior layout provides for the general seating 
area to be located at the front half of the space. The bar area is proposed at the center and 
the microbrewery and cold storage unit are located at the rear of the building. The applicant 
will not be utilizing the outdoor space at the rear of the building. In light of this, any potential 
noise from the operation that may travel to the neighborhood to the west will be minimal 
and non-detrimental to adjacent land uses. Staff is providing a condition that the back door 

159



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 4 of 10 

is to remain closed during business hours and that work conducted in the back room be 
limited to 9:00 pm.  
 
Parking 
 
The commercial center has a parking requirement of a minimum of 127 parking stalls as 
required with Site Plan Review SPR91-82. A variance to the parking requirement was 
approved by the Planning Commission on July 25, 1991. The variance allowed for a 
parking standard of 4.8 stalls per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area with the exception 
that the center prohibit the operation of following uses: drug stores, grocery stores, and 
medical and professional offices. The commercial center has a total of 122 existing parking 
stalls, meeting the approved standard.  
 
Staff does not foresee issues specific to parking for this use within the existing commercial 
center. The nature of the existing uses in the center do not typically draw many vehicles to 
the area on a regular basis. Additionally, the proposed days and hours of operation of the 
tap house are during times that will have minimal impact to customers visiting the other 
businesses within the center.         
 
Alcohol and Beverage Control  
 
With the approval of this conditional use permit, the applicant will be requesting a type 23 
brewery license with the Department of Alcohol and Beverage Control (ABC). A type 23 
license authorizes the sale and consumption of beer produced in the premises. ABC 
analyzes license requests by census tracts and the subject property is located within 
census tract 31.02 which is bounded by Winery Avenue to the west, Shaw Avenue to the 
north, Clovis Avenue to the east, and Gettysburg Avenue to the south. As of September 12, 
2018, according to the Department‟s map query system, the census tract currently houses 
13 active on-sale retail licenses. According to correspondence with the Police Department, 
the census tract is not oversaturated.  
 
The Clovis Unified School District provided a letter of opposition to the alcohol sales due to 
the Project‟s proximity to the Center for Advanced Research and Technology (CART) less 
than a quarter mile to the northeast (see Attachment 3).  The Clovis Police Department has 
also reviewed the application and does not have any specific concerns with the use and 
operation.   

 
Public Comments  

 
A public notice was sent to area residents within 300 feet of the property boundaries.  
On September 27, 2018, staff received email correspondence from Ms. Brown, a 
resident from the Rancho Estates neighborhood directly west of the shopping center. 
Ms. Brown listed concerns and questions within her email (see Attachment 2). Ms. 
Brown also attended the Planning Commission on September 27, 2018 meeting where 
she reiterated her concerns. She was made aware of the applicant‟s request for 

160



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 5 of 10 

continuance. Staff did respond to Ms. Brown‟s email prior to the meeting and had 
attached the applicant‟s statement of operations. Staff has not received further 
correspondence from Ms. Brown or other area residents. 
 
Review and Comments from Agencies 

 
The Project was distributed to all City Divisions as well as outside agencies, including 
Cal Trans, Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan 
Flood Control District, AT&T, PG&E, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, 
State Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the County of Fresno.  Comments received 
are attached only if the agency has provided concerns, conditions, or mitigation 
measures. 
 
Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the administrative record and 
provided to the applicant for their records. 

 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 
The City of Clovis has completed an environmental review (an assessment of the 
project‟s impact on natural and manmade environments) of the proposed project, as 
required by the State of California.  The Project is in substantial conformance with the 
environmental impact report performed for the General Plan.  No major revisions will be 
required with the adopted Environmental Impact Report to accommodate the proposed 
projects; therefore, subject to CEQA Sections 15162 and 15182, no further 
environmental review is required for these projects. 
 
The City published notice of this public hearing in The Business Journal on Wednesday, 
September 12, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Project is consistent with the goals and policies of the General Plan and Zoning and 
provides a diversity of land use within a vacant commercial property; Therefore, staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission approve CUP2018-10, subject to the 
conditions of approval listed as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Findings for approval of a conditional use permit application are as follows: 

 
1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair 

the integrity and character of the subject zoning district and is in 
compliance with all of the applicable provisions of this Development 
Code; 

161



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 6 of 10 

 
2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any 

applicable specific plan; 
 

3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the 
proposed use are compatible with the existing and future land uses and 
would not create significant noise, traffic, or other conditions or 
situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other allowed 
uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City; 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type 

and density/ intensity of use being proposed; 
 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and 
public utilities and services to ensure that the proposed use would not 
be detrimental to public health and safety; and 

 
6.  The project is in substantial conformance with the environmental 

analysis performed for the 2014 General Plan updated, 2014 
Development Code updated. 

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
None 

 
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
 Property owners within 300 feet notified:  45 
 Interested individuals notified:   11 
 
 
Prepared by:  Lily Cha, Assistant Planner 
 
 

 
 
 

162



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 7 of 10 

FIGURE 1 
PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
  

163



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 8 of 10 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Conditions of Approval – CUP2018-10 

 
Planning Division Conditions 

(Lily Cha, Division Representative – (559) 324-2335) 
 

1. All conditions of this use permit shall be addressed prior to operation of the 
facility.   

 
2. Conditional Use Permit CUP2018-10 may be reviewed in one year after 

operation for compliance with the conditions of approval.  Planning staff may 
conduct a review of the use and may present these findings to the Planning 
Commission.  Should the use be found to be in non-compliance, the 
Commission may schedule the use permit for revocation. 

 
3. This conditional use permit approves a bar/tap room with ancillary micro-

brewery for property located at 2700 Clovis Avenue suites 103 & 104.  Any 
changes in use may require an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit. 
 

4. The microbrewery portion of the operation shall remain an ancillary use to the 
bar use and at no point shall become the primary use of the operation.  
 

5. There shall be no outdoor activity at the rear of the building other than typical 
loading and unloading of material. 
 

6. The back door shall remain closed during business hours and there shall be 
no work activity in the back after 9:00 pm.   

  
7. All signs for this use shall comply with the Clovis Sign Ordinance and require 

separate sign permits.  Temporary signs shall be per Code and the use of 
mascots and sign waivers shall be prohibited. 

 
8. All employee parking shall occur on site. 
 
9. Succession or abandonment of this use for a period of exceeding 90 days 

shall be cause for scheduling of a revocation hearing for this conditional use 
permit. 

 
10. Operation of the site shall conform to the Clovis noise and vibration standards 

(CMC §9.22.080 and §9.22.100).  
 

11. No outdoor display of merchandise is permitted unless approved through a 
separate Administrative Use Permit. 

 

164



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 9 of 10 

12. With exception to temporary placement of deliverables, the operator shall not 
store materials and supplies outside the building.   

Fire Department Conditions 
(Gary Sawhill, Department Representative - 324-2224) 

13.  Any tenant improvements of a building involving changes to walls, ceilings, 
doors, storage heights electrical, plumbing shall require plans to be submitted 
to both the fire and building department for plan review and permit issuance. 

 
14.  Any tenant improvements of a building involving changes to walls, ceilings, 

storage heights shall not affect the operation and coverage of an existing fire 
suppression system(s). All additions or changes to any sprinkler system 
require Clovis Fire Department review and approval. Submit plans to and 
obtain permit from the Clovis Fire Prevention Bureau for the installation or 
modification of fire sprinkler system. 

 
15.  The applicant shall install approved fire extinguishers, 2A-10BC minimum 

rating, one (1) per each 3000 square feet (ordinary hazard), with a maximum 
travel of seventy-five feet (75‟) from any point in building. These should be 
located and approved by the Clovis Fire Department prior to building 
occupancy. 

 
16.  Suite numbers shall be installed at front and rear doors. 

 
17.  No locks are permitted to prevent the operation of doors except the main 

exterior door meeting the requirements of 1010.1.9.3 CBC. The unlatching of 
any door shall not require more than one operation.   

 
18.  Any room having an occupant load of 50 or more and which is used for 

assembly purposes shall have the capacity of the room posted in a 
conspicuous place on an approved sign near the main exit from the room. 

 
19.  Exit doors shall swing in the direction of egress travel and shall not be 

provided with a latch or a lock unless it is panic hardware with the exception of 
the main exit in compliance with section 1010.1.10 CFC.   

 
20.  The path of exit travel to and within exits in a building shall be identified by 

illuminated exit signs conforming to the requirements of the California Fire 
Code. 

 
21.  The applicant shall install emergency lighting with battery backup or an 

approved alternate in accordance with the California Fire Code. 
 

22.  The interior walls separating adjacent suites shall comply with table 508.4 of 
the 2016 CBC for required fire resistive rating based on fire separation 

165



Planning Commission Report 
CUP2018-10 

October 25, 2018 
 

CUP2018-10 10/19/2018 5:25:56 PM Page 10 of 10 

distance. A minimum one hour wall is required when separating A 
occupancies from B, M occupancies. 

 
Clovis Unified School District Conditions 

(Andrew Neighbors, CUSD Representative – 559-327-9000) 
 

23. The Applicant shall refer to the attached CUSD correspondence.  If the list is 
not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District Conditions 
(Michael Maxwell, FMFCD Representative – (559) 456-3292) 

 
24. The Applicant shall refer to the attached FMFCD correspondence.  If the list is 

not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

Fresno Irrigation Department Conditions 
(Chris Lundeen, FID Representative - 233-7161 ext. 7410) 

 
25. The Applicant shall refer to the attached FID correspondence.  If the list is not 

attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

County of Fresno Health Department Conditions 
(Kevin Tsuda, County of Fresno Health Department Representative – 600-3271) 

 
26. The Applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno County Health Department 

correspondence.  If the list is not attached, please contact the District for the 
list of requirements. 
 

Engineering Division Conditions 
(Sean Smith, Division Representative – 324-2363) 

 
27. The applicant shall provide a dedication for a 10' public utility easement along 

all frontages. 
 
28. The applicant shall pay all applicable fees prior to the issuing of a building 

permit.  A preliminary estimate for the required 10‟ public utility easement 
document review fee is $115 per City Resolution 18-61.   

 

166



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 18-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A BAR WITH ANCILLARY MICROBREWERY FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 2700 CLOVIS AVENUE SUITES 103 AND 104 

 
 WHEREAS, Ish Brewing Company, LLC., 6741 E. Princeton., Fresno, CA, 93727, has applied for 
a Conditional Use Permit CUP2018-10; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this is a request to approve a conditional use permit for a bar with ancillary 
microbrewery for property located at 2700 Clovis Avenue, Suites 103 and 104, in the City of Clovis, 
County of Fresno; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public notice was sent out to area residents within 300 feet of said property 
boundaries ten days prior to said hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on October 25, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission, has reviewed and considered the staff report and all written 

materials submitted in connection with the request including the conditions attached as Exhibit “A” to this 
resolution and incorporated herein by this reference, and hearing and considering the testimony 
presented during the public hearing; and: 
 

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity and 
character of the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the applicable 
provisions of this Development Code; 

 
2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific plan; 

 
3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant noise, 
traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other 
allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City; 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and density/ 

intensity of use being proposed; 
 

5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities and 
services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health and 
safety; and 

 
6.  The project is in substantial conformance with the environmental analysis performed for 

the 2014 General Plan updated, 2014 Development Code updated.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clovis Planning Commission does 
approve CUP2018-10, subject to the attached conditions labeled Exhibit "A” 
            
  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular meeting 
on October 25, 2018, upon a motion by Commissioner _________, seconded by Commissioner 
_________, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 

167



ATTACHMENT 1 

 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 18-____ 
DATED: October 25, 2018 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Paul Hinkle, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Dwight Kroll, AICP, Secretary 
 

168



169



ATTACHMENT 2

CORRESPONDENCE FROM 

AGENCIES 

170



County of Fresno   
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

 David Pomaville, Director 
Dr. Sara Goldgraben, Health Officer 

Promotion, preservation and protection of the community’s health 
1221 Fulton Street /P. O. Box 11867, Fresno, CA 93775 

(559) 600-3271 ・ FAX (559) 600-7629
The County of Fresno is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer 

www.co.fresno.ca.us ・ www.fcdph.org  

September 6, 2018 
LU0019628
2604            

Lily Cha, Assistant Planner 
City of Clovis 
Planning and Development Services Department
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA  93612 

Dear Ms. Cha: 

PROJECT NUMBER: CUP2018-10 

CUP2018-10, A conditional use permit request for a proposed taproom with ancillary brewing located 
at 2700 Clovis Avenue Suites 103 & 104. 

APN: 499-134-21          ADDRESS: 2700 Clovis Avenue Suites 103 & 104 

Recommended Conditions of Approval: 

 Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant will be required to submit complete food facility
plans and specifications to the Fresno County Department of Public Health, Environmental Health
Division, for review and approval.  The applicant may also be required to apply for and obtain a
permit to operate a food facility from the Fresno County Department of Public Health,
Environmental Health Division. A permit, once issued, is nontransferable. Contact the Consumer
Food Protection Program at (559) 600-3357 for more information.

 Prior to alcohol sales, the applicant shall first obtain their ABC license to sell alcoholic beverages.
Contact the California Alcoholic Beverage Control Department at (559) 225-6334 for more
information.

 The proposed use of amplified speakers for entertainment events, has the potential to expose
nearby residents to elevated noise levels.  Consideration should be given to your City’s municipal
code.

REVIEWED BY: 

Kevin Tsuda, R.E.H.S. 
Environmental Health Specialist II (559) 600-3271

cc:   Rogers & Moreno-Environmental Health Division (CT. 31.02) 
Kevin Draughon- Applicant (kevin@ishbrewing.com) 

171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186


	Top
	1. Planning Commission Minutes 9/27/2018
	PC Minutes 9-27-18.doc

	2. TM6076 Extension
	TM6076 Extension PC Staff Report.docx
	TM6076 Att A.pdf
	TM6076 Att B.pdf

	3. CUP2017-10A - George Gonzalez, Associate Planner
	CUP2017-10A- PC Staff Report.docx
	CUP2017-10A, ATTACHMENT 1- Draft Resolution.pdf
	CUP2017-10A, ATTACHMENT 2- City Council Resolution 18-22.pdf

	4. CUP2018-04
	CUP2018-04, PC Staff Report.docx
	CUP2018-04, PC Res 18-xx.doc
	CUP2018-04, ATTACHMENT 2- CORRESPONDENCE.pdf
	CUP2018-04, EXHIBIT B- Site Plan, Floor Plans, Elevations.pdf
	CUP2018-04, ATTACHMENT 3, Neighborhood Correspondence.pdf

	5. CUP2018-09
	PC Staff Report CUP2018-09.docx
	CUP2018-09, ATTACHMENT 1, PC Res.18-xx.docx
	CUP2018-09, ATTACHMENT 2, Correspondence.pdf
	CUP2018-09, EXHIBIT B-Site Plan.pdf
	CUP2018-09, EXHIBIT B-1, Conceptual Plan.pdf
	CUP2018-09, EXHIBIT C, Elevations and Floor Plan.pdf

	6. CUP2018-10
	PC Staff Report CUP2018-10.docx
	Attachment 1_Draft Resolution.docx
	Attachment 2- Correspondence from Resident.pdf
	Attachment 3- Correspondence from Agencies.pdf
	Exhibit B_ Site Plan.pdf
	Exhibit C_Floor Plan.pdf

	Bottom

